
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services, (01254) 380116/380109/380184 
Email:  memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 4 February 2020 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday, 12 February 2020 at 3.00 pm, 
Queen Elizabeth Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, Joyce Plummer, Loraine Cox and Jenny Molineux 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

PART A: PROCEDURAL AND INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 3 - 22) 
 
To approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 15th January 2020. 
 

4.   Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups  (Pages 23 - 40) 
 
To receive the minutes of the following Boards, Panels and Working Groups: 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Meeting Date 

Regeneration and Housing Panel 10th June 2019 

Regeneration and Housing Panel 21st August 2019 

Regeneration and Housing Panel 14th October 2019 

Cabinet Waste and Recycling Group 19th December 2019 
 

PART B: PORTFOLIO ITEMS 
 

5.   Reports of Cabinet Members   
 
To receive verbal reports from each of the Portfolio Holders, as appropriate. 
 

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration (Councillor Loraine Cox) 
 

6.   Global Resettlement Scheme - Request for Procurement Rules Exemption  (Pages 
41 - 46) 
 
Report attached. 
 

Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) 
 

7.   Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy  (Pages 47 - 68) 
 
Report attached. 
 

PART C: EXEMPT ITEMS 
 
NIL 
 
 
 



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 15th January, 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox, 

Loraine Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP and Joyce Plummer 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson, June Harrison, Marlene Haworth and Dave 
Parkins 

  

 
207 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Jenny Molineux. 
 

208 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

209 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 13th November 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson referred to Minute 171 - Littering and Dog Fouling Enforcement – 
at Paragraph 2 of Page 4.  He indicated that he had not yet received a written response to 
the matter of the income available to the enforcement company.  Councillor Paul Cox 
apologised for the delay and confirmed that the response would be sent shortly. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson referred to Minute 172 – Accrington Markets – at Paragraph 1 of 
Page 6 and reminded the Cabinet that the Opposition group was happy to share its ideas 
though a cross-party working group.  The Leader of the Council, Councillor Miles 
Parkinson, thanked Councillor Dobson for his support which would be accepted.  He added 
that there had already been an exchange of texts before the Christmas period about the 
town centre regeneration funding.  Unfortunately the Council had not been successful in its 
bid for direct funding for the town centre, but had been chosen as a pilot area to receive 
dedicated expert advice.  It was the Leader’s intention to meet with the Leader of the 
Opposition and the new MP, Sara Britcliffe, on Friday to discuss this matter.  Ultimately, it 
was hoped to establish a Town Team/Panel to include councillors and relevant 
stakeholders, which could then work with the local MP and Jake Berry MP, Minister of State 
for the Northern Powerhouse and Local Growth, to develop a programme which would 
benefit future generations. 
 
Councillor Marlene Haworth commented on the same minute (above) and indicated that 
she had been pleased to see the 30% discount applied to certain indoor market hall traders.   
She added that that she had received numerous comments about the lack of consistent 
opening hours of the stalls and that she would prefer to see some core working hours 
applied within the rental agreements.  The Leader of the Council thanked Councillor 
Haworth for her observations and agreed to feed this point into the development process.  
Overall there needed to be a step change in the way that the town centre was organised, 
which might include some radical thinking.  A team approach, bringing in a wealth of ideas 
with a view to reaching a consensus, was vital to designing the way forward. 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

210 Let's Move Hyndburn 
 
Members received a presentation from Lyndsey Sims, Chief Executive Officer, Hyndburn 
Leisure, in connection with the Let’s Move Hyndburn programme.  The programme would 
see up to £10m invested in Hyndburn and Pennine Lancashire. 
 
Ms Sims highlighted the following:- 
 

 The culture of ‘buy now pay later’, as it applied to health risks, i.e. living for today; 

 The health benefits of physical activity; 

 A quote from Public Health England about the importance of physical activity, 
comparing being active to a ‘pill’; 

 The aim for people to undertake 150 minutes of moderate intensity activity; 

 What counted as moderate physical activity; 

 Together an Active Future (existing programme); 

 Local Delivery Pilot – Lead organisation and Other Partners 

 Pilot themes:- 
o Active work places 
o Active places 
o Game changers 
o Mental fitness 
o Pennine Active Lifestyle Hub; 

 Project commencement: public engagement campaign - methodology and 
outcomes. 

 
Members asked a number of questions and raised issues including the following:- 
 

 The need for expert advice to be on hand to help those with existing or complex 
medical conditions to access the most appropriate activities; 

 The need for the offer to meet the needs of Hyndburn’s diverse, but deprived 
population to enable residents to remain well even in later life, to combat loneliness 
in the elderly and to ensure young people do not lead sedentary lifestyles due to 
over-use of technology; 

 The possibility of a 60 Minutes Briefing being held for all councillors on this topic; 

 The contribution that the Council could make to wellbeing through its parks and 
open spaces; 

 The need to engage with all of Hyndburn’s communities to ensure that the offer was 
culturally appropriate; 

 Whether the programme could provide funding for voluntary organisations to 
develop specific projects, such as the proposals for Play4Uz2 to create a space at 
Hyndburn Sports Centre. 

 
Ms Sims summarised by stating that the Let’s Move Hyndburn project would respond to 
what the community wanted.  The Leader of the Council thanked Ms Sims for her 
attendance and presentation and hoped to invite representatives of the Trust back on a 
future date to report on progress. 
 

211 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
The following verbal reports were provided: 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
Councillor Munsif Dad (Education, Leisure and Arts) 
 
Councillor Munsif Dad reported that a second outdoor gym in Hyndburn had recently been 
opened in Milnshaw Park.  The gym was another example of effective partnership working 
between Hyndburn Leisure and the Borough Council.  The equipment would enable arms, 
legs an shoulders to be exercised and was suitable for persons of 14 years or older.  The 
equipment catered for a range of fitness levels, from beginners to regular users.  The gym 
was free to use and had clear instructions posted on how to use it.  A QR code was also 
provided so that users could download an App, which gave advice on how to use the 
equipment and provided feedback on individuals’ levels of activity to improve their overall 
health. 
 
Councillor Paul Cox (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
Councillor Paul Cox reported that, at the Lancashire Waste Partnership meeting in 
November 2019, figures had been provided on each of the Lancashire authorities’ 
performance figures compared to the previous year.  The following were highlighted:- 
 

 Hyndburn had the biggest reduction of all authorities in levels of residual waste at 
6.63%; 

 Card and paper recycling was up by 10%; 

 Plastic, glass and cans recycling was up by 15%. 
 
Overall, Hyndburn was the number 1 collection authority, which was thanks to the residents 
themselves and to the Council’s decision to replace the bags and boxes waste scheme, 
with wheelie bins. 
 
Councillor P Cox also reported that the ‘Poo Dunnit’ Scheme had recently successfully 
resulted in its first £75 Fixed Penalty Notice being issued, with a £50 reward provided for 
the information received on the offender.  The Council provided free dog-waste disposal 
bags and serviced dog-waste bins for responsible owners.  Law abiding citizens were fed 
up with those irresponsible owners who flouted the law and enforcement would continue to 
tackle this issue.  Residents who cleaned up after their dogs had nothing to fear. 
 
Resolved - To note the verbal reports provided by Cabinet Members 
 

212 Council Tax Base - 2020-2021 
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE, Leader of the Council, provided a report on the Council 
Tax Base for 2020-21. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
In accordance with Section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council is 
required to formally determine the Council Tax Base for 2020-2021 prior to 31st January 
2020.  This allows the Council to notify the major preceptors (Lancashire County Council, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire and Lancashire Combined Fire 
Authority) by the 31st January of the Council Tax Base. 
 
The requisite calculation has to be carried out in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012.  Once determined the Council Tax 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Base cannot be changed and has to be used when the Council set their Council Tax for the 
financial year 2020-2021. 
 
The calculation of the Tax Base for Hyndburn and Altham for 2020-2021 was provided with 
the report.  It is proposed that the Tax Base for Hyndburn 2020-2021 shall be 20,948.  This 
is an increase from last year’s Tax Base of 14 (20,934).  The 2020-2021 Tax Base for 
Altham is 315, a decrease from last year’s Tax Base of 1 (316). 
 
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 specify formulae 
for calculating the Council Tax Base which must be set between the 1st December 2019 
and the 31st January 2020. 
 
The Council Tax Base is the measure of the number of chargeable dwellings held on the 
valuation list as at the 09 September 2019 and then adjusted to take account of discounts, 
exemptions, re-bandings and Council Tax Support to arrive at the Authority’s Council Tax 
Band D. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
This is a statutory requirement, therefore no other options can be considered. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet notes the report on the Council Tax Base for 

2020-21 
 

(2) That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation 
of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by 
the Council for its Council Tax Base for the financial year 
2020-2021 shall be 20,948. 

 
(3) That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation 

of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by 
the Council for its Council Tax Base for the parish of 
Altham for the financial year 2020-2021 shall be 315. 

 
213 Redevelopment of Peel Street Accrington 

 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council, reported on proposals to reduce the 
market stall/unit overcapacity by removing the external market pavilion/canopy and stone 
kiosks along Peel Street and redevelopment to provide additional town centre car parking, 
incorporating new paving and associated street furniture.  The report built upon work 
carried out by the previous Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration, Councillor Clare 
Cleary. 
 
Councillor Dobson commented that he understood the reasons for looking at this matter, 
which was due to overcapacity within the market for retail accommodation and that the 
Council could ease the situation by removing its own retail provision.  He would like to see 
what the longer term positive impact might be and whether there was a vision for the future 
of the town’s retail offer.  In particular, it would be useful to know what footfall was 
envisaged and what new businesses might be attracted to the town centre. 
 
The Leader of the Council reiterated his earlier comments about a meeting on Friday 
regarding town centre regeneration and the future engagement of stakeholders and 
Members of Parliament.  A substantial amount of money could be levered into regeneration.  
The Market Hall could be the jewel in the crown of the project, which would be discussed 
further under the next Agenda item.  This also linked into the face-lifting of existing 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
5 

properties using Heritage Lottery money.  On a wider scale the development of Huncoat 
Garden Village would also contribute to the vibrancy of Accrington town centre and the 
improvement of the Borough.  Future success was reliant on everybody working closely 
together. 
 
Councillor Haworth enquired if a project manager had been engaged for this work yet.  It 
was reported that this would be an external appointment, but that tenders had not yet been 
sought. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
A previous scheme back in 2016/17 looking to remove market stall overcapacity gained 
general support from marker traders and Members.  However, there was no funding 
available at that time so the project did not progress past design concept stage.  
 
Due to the continued reduction in footfall from the shift towards on-line shopping and 
expansion of retail centres/supermarkets, it is recognised there is substantial market stall 
overcapacity located within the external pavilions and some stone kiosks on Peel Street.  
 
Market traders have voiced their concerns that since the relocation of the bus station, there 
has been a reduction in footfall and alluded that insufficient town centre parking is not 
allowing customers easy access to the Market Hall.  Traders continue to be supportive of 
the idea to remove the overcapacity on Peel Street, if the redevelopment provided 
additional short term car parking and thereby attracting customers into the Market Hall.  
 
Due to the acknowledged overcapacity, there is a political wish to see the pavilions 
removed and to provide more town centre parking.  Such a scheme could incorporate a 
continuation of the town square paving, street furniture and raised planters onto Peel Street 
and open up the Southeast façade of the Market Hall, which was the original Market Hall 
main entrance in the early 1900’s.  
 
The Council no longer has the resources or expertise to design, undertake a tender 
exercise and project manage a scheme of this scale and the appointment of an 
experienced engineering Project Manager will bring a wealth of experience and potentially 
value for money advantages.  
 
Officers continue to hold discussions with the traders from the Peel Street Kiosks and 
outside stalls on how best to accommodate them within the indoor Market Hall/external 
pavilion on Market Way, if the project was to proceed.  However, where tenants cannot be 
relocated with their agreement, the Council will follow the appropriate statutory procedures.  
 
Cabinet is also considering a proposal to redevelop part of the ground floor indoor Market 
Hall into a social hub serving food and drinks and the availability of car parking directly 
outside would only help attract customers to the venue.  
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection  
 
The Council could continue to operate the external market kiosks and stalls but this has 
been rejected as shopping habits continue to change.  There is an acceptance from traders 
that there is insufficient demand and overcapacity and therefore a strong wish to see this 
external space redeveloped for additional town centre car parking. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
6 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet approves in principal the removal of the 
external pavilion/canopy, stone kiosks facing Peel Street 
and subsequent redevelopment of the area to provide 
additional town centre car parking, with comparable 
paving, street furniture continuing from the town square 
and expansion of the building lighting to the Southeast 
side of the Market Hall; and  

 
(2) That Cabinet authorises and delegates authority to the 

Executive Director (Environment) following consultation 
with the Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) 
to undertake the necessary steps involved in serving the 
appropriate legal notices to terminate leases/licences 
agreements granted to the Peel Street kiosk/market 
tenants and any supplementary legal notices/agreements 
to third party utility providers and/or the Highway 
Authority; and  

 
(3) That Cabinet requests the Executive Director 

(Environment) following consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder responsible for the Markets and Leader of the 
Council, to provide proposals for the relocation of the 
Peel Street kiosk/market tenants within the remaining 
market site; and  

 
(4) That Cabinet authorises the Executive Director 

(Environment) to appoint a Project Manager who will 
commence site investigations/surveys, produce detailed 
drawings and undertake a tender exercise; and  

 
(5) That Cabinet request a further report with full project 

costs and timescales for consideration at a later date. 
 

214 Accrington Indoor Market Hall Redevelopment 
 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council, reported on proposals to change within 
part of the indoor Market Hall from traditional market stall traders to a social hub 
incorporating multiple small kitchens and other outlets offering a variety of different food 
styles and drinks together with communal seating. 
 
Councillor Marlene Haworth raised some concerns about the suggestion of developing a 
food hall and a social hub.  She reminded Members that a food outlet venture established 
not too long ago in the Arndale Centre had not been successful.  The lack of significant 
footfall in the town centre could be a barrier to any future aspirations around a food offer.  In 
addition, there were already several other restaurants and pubs in the centre which 
provided low cost food.  She advised caution around the proposals and asked if there was a 
‘Plan B’.  She also enquired if the vision was set in stone. 
 
The Leader of the Council commented that development of the project represented a large 
investment in officer time.  However, the Town Hall, Market Hall and shop frontages were 
the jewel in the crown in Accrington and could be a real draw for visitors.  At this stage the 
vision for the market was not set in stone.  The Pilot Team would be able to work on what 
was Accrington’s niche role and would enable the Council to write the case to the right 
people in Government about the investment needed.  A consensus would be required. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
7 

Councillor P Cox reiterated that the purpose of the report was not to implement a solution, 
but to begin the dialogue to identify options and to help find a solution. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Due to the continued pressures from reduced footfall, on-line shopping and out of town 
centre retail centres/supermarkets, it is recognised that there is an overcapacity of 
stall/units within the indoor market hall, with current occupancy levels running at around 
55%.  
 
Continuing the traditional market model across the whole ground floor is no longer 
economically sustainable and it is the Leader’s and Portfolio Holder’s wish to consider the 
redeveloped of part of the indoor market hall to create a social hub with commercial retail 
units serving food and drinks.  The development of a social hub will hopefully increase 
footfall levels in the Market Hall, Blackburn Road shops and newly refurbished town centre 
square.  
 
There are a number of successful examples of venues which have been redeveloped to 
serve food and drink across the North, such as Altringham, Manchester, Chester, Preston, 
Durham, Warrington and other authorities such as Southport and Wigan are considering 
similar schemes for their market/historic buildings.  Chester is probably most similar to the 
Council’s vision, with half of their market building still operating traditional market stalls.  
 
The success of venues like these is based on offering diners different styles of food, 
(typically limited to around 6 to 8 choices from each commercial retail kitchen), similarly 
priced across the other kitchens.  The businesses are not high street brands or franchises 
but usually local/regional chefs wanting to start a business or open up more outlets where 
they already have a local following.  Some venues also keep a kitchen vacant to provide 
‘one off’ / pop up type events.  Food styles may have some local references but there are a 
range of options, from wood fired pizza to quality burgers, fish, Thai/Mexican, traditional pie 
and mash, vegetarian/vegan alongside coffee/baked goods, alcoholic and non-alcoholic 
drinks.  
 
Dawnvale Group are a very experienced design and project management company working 
within the hospitality and leisure industry and have undertaken similar commercial retail 
work inside historic buildings, involving Local Authorities and their appointment as 
Design/Project Manager will enable the Council to draw on their contacts/design 
experience, in-house industrial electrical and mechanical design engineers which could 
bring advantages with regards to value for money and managing all elements, rather than 
seeking quotes from separate architectural, electrical and mechanical engineering design 
companies.  
 
The Council will also have to determine how the new food and drink outlets / social hub will 
be managed.  At this stage officers envisage that this part of the Market Hall could be 
leased to a single provider who will then take responsibility for commercially letting the 
individual outlets and managing the social hub.  Another option is that the Council could 
appoint somebody to manage the outlets and social hub on the Council’s behalf, but with 
the outlets being directly let by the Council to the individual traders.  Alternatively, the 
Council could employ its own staff to manage the day to day operation of social hub and 
lease arrangements direct with the traders.  The implications and costs of each approach 
have yet to be fully evaluated and this process will be assisted by discussions with any 
interested parties.  
 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
8 

Whilst there continues to be ongoing discussion with the market traders, if the project is 
approved by Cabinet, there may be a small number of existing tenants who do not wish to 
be part of the new social hub and therefore may need relocating to other areas within the 
redesigned Market Hall.  
 
Cabinet is also considering a redevelopment proposal to reduce overcapacity by removing 
the pavilion/canopy and stone kiosks on Peel Street to provide additional town centre 
parking.  This car parking will be directly outside the Market Hall and can only help attract 
customers to the proposed social hub and wider town centre businesses.  
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection  
 
The Council could continue to promote the Market Hall operating traditional market stalls 
but this has been rejected as shopping habits have fundamentally changed.  There is 
insufficient demand to achieve anywhere near 100% occupancy levels and there is a strong 
political wish to see part of the building redeveloped as a social hub. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet approves in principal, a proposal to change 

an area within the indoor Market Hall, (the end facing onto 
the new town square) from traditional market stalls to 
food kitchens and drink outlets with communal seating; 
and  

 
(2) That Cabinet agrees to waive the Council’s contract 

procedures rules and authorises the Executive Director 
(Environment) following consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder responsible for the Markets to appoint Dawnvale 
Group, Albert House, Albert Street, Hollinwood, 
Manchester to produce a concept scheme and a realistic 
project budget estimate; and  

 
(3) That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director 

(Environment) following consultation with the Executive 
Director (Legal & Democratic Services) to engage in 
discussions with third parties interested in leasing or 
managing the social hub commercial retail kitchens and 
drink outlets; and  

 
(4) That Cabinet request a further report with budget project 

costs and lease / management options for consideration 
at a later date. 

 
215 Report of Urgent Cabinet Decision - Hyndburn's Homelessness Strategy 2020 - 2025 

 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, reported on a decision 
which had been taken on 18th December 2019 by the Head of Regeneration and Housing, 
in accordance with Executive Procedure Rule B16, in relation to the Homelessness Review 
2019 and the overarching Strategy for 2020-2025.  The decision was as follows:- 
 
That approval be given to Hyndburn’s Prevention of Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy and the accompanying Homelessness Review as set out at appendices 1 and 2 of 
the report. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
9 

Reasons for Decision 
 
The decision was urgent on the basis that the deadline for the submission of a revised 
Homelessness Review and strategy to the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
Government was 31st December 201 and there was no Cabinet meeting to due be held 
before that date. 
 
The report contained the reasons for the substantive decision and included information on 
the following:- 
 
Homelessness Review 2019 
 

 The levels and likely future levels of homelessness in Hyndburn; 

 The activities carried out in respect of preventing homelessness, securing 
accommodation and providing support for people who are homeless or at risk of 
becoming homeless; 

 The resources available; 

 The main causes of homelessness; 

 Specific issues including: single people, mental health issues, use of B&B 
accommodation, Calico Homeless Families Project, Rough Sleeping and Welfare 
Benefit issues. 

 
Hyndburn Prevention of Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
 

 Prevention and relief of homelessness; 

 Provision of temporary accommodation; 

 Working with landlords and suppliers of accommodation; 

 Tackling and reducing levels of rough sleeping. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection  
 
The Council is required under the Homelessness Act 2002 to have an up to date 
Homelessness Strategy in place and to undertake a review every five years.  Therefore, not 
having a strategy is not an option.  The strategy provides for housing advice and assistance 
to the most vulnerable households across the Borough and those in greatest need. 
 
Resolved - To note the decision taken by the Head of Regeneration 

and Housing, under Executive Procedure Rule B16, to 
approve Hyndburn’s Prevention of Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Strategy and the accompanying 
Homelessness Review. 

 
216 Report of Urgent Cabinet Decision - Exclusivity Agreement with Keepmoat 

 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, reported on a decision 
which had been taken on 18th December 2019 by the Head of Regeneration and Housing, 
in accordance with Executive Procedure Rule B16, in relation to an Exclusivity Agreement 
with Keepmoat Homes Limited for the disposal of the Council’s interest in two sites for 
residential development.  The sites were as follows:- 
 

 Land south of Blackburn Road, Accrington, known as Phoenix 1D; and 

 Land at Howard Close, Accrington, known as Spring Hill Village, Accrington 
 
The decision was as follows:- 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
10 

 
That authority be granted to enter into an Exclusivity Agreement with Keepmoat Homes 
Limited for the two sites described in the report and for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
That authority be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Housing to conclude the 
terms of the Exclusivity Agreement following consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration and Housing. 
 
That the Head of Regeneration and Housing be authorised to complete the exclusivity 
Agreement following satisfactory completion of negotiations with Keepmoat Homes Limited. 
 
That it be noted that a further report will be brought to a future Cabinet meeting to allow 
Cabinet to consider the terms of disposal for the two sites described in the report. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The decision was urgent on the basis that the existing Overarching Development 
Agreement (ODA) with Keepmoat ended on 19th December 2019 and Keepmoat had 
indicated that they might withdraw their interest in the sites if they were not granted a 
further exclusivity period upon the expiry of the ODA and there were no further Cabinet 
meetings being held before this date. 
 
The report set out the reasons for the substantive decision in more detail.  Key points are 
summarised below:- 
 

 The ODA arrangement had been successful in securing regeneration and 
development of 216 new modern high quality homes, in West Accrington; 

 The two remaining sites that are subject to the ODA remain undeveloped as they 
are not considered to be financially viable; 

 The Council has an opportunity to access funding for land remediation and 
infrastructure work for the two sites through Homes England’s Local Authority 
Accelerated Construction Fund, which will be subject to legal terms and a separate 
report to Cabinet at a later date.  Approval and access to this funding could make 
the two development parcels financially viable; 

 Keepmoat remain very keen to work with the Council in development the two sites 
for housing, subject to having exclusive right to purchase the site for a maximum 
period of 6 months. 

 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection  
 
The Council could consider not developing the two sites.  However, this could be a missed 
opportunity to develop new, modern housing in the area, as well as leave the two sites 
undeveloped. 
 
The Council could consider advertising the two sites on the open market.  However, it is 
considered that developers are unlikely to regard the sites as financially viable currently 
and, therefore, this is an opportunity to secure the two sites for development in conjunction 
with Keepmoat, subject to securing Homes England funding. 
 
The Exclusivity Agreement will only be short term and, therefore, if the Council is unable to 
secure favourable terms with Keepmoat, the Council will then be able to place the sites on 
the open market. 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
11 

 
Resolved - To note the decision taken by the Head of Regeneration 

and Housing, under Executive Procedure Rule B16, to 
approve various actions identified within the report 
relation to an Exclusivity Agreement with Keepmoat 
Homes Limited. 

 
217 Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury Management Strategy Update 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided a report to update 
Cabinet on activities in connection with Prudential Indicators Monitoring and the Treasury 
Management Strategy since the start of this financial year. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires the Council to set 
Prudential Indicators annually for the forthcoming three years to demonstrate that the 
Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Council 
adopted its current prudential indicators at its meeting in February 2019. 
 
The Prudential Code requires the Council, having agreed at least a minimum number of 
mandatory prudential indicators (including limits and statements), to monitor them - in a 
locally determined format and frequency.  This half-year report to Cabinet complements a 
more regular review by the Deputy Chief Executive. 
 
The indicators are purely for internal use and not designed to be used as comparators 
between authorities.  If it should be necessary to revise any of the indicators during the 
year, the Deputy Chief Executive will report and advise the Council further.  
 
‘Treasury Management’ relates to the borrowing and cash activities of the authority, and the   
effective management of any associated risks.  On 21st February 2019 in the same report 
referred to above the Council also set out and then approved its current Treasury 
Management Strategy.  This was in accordance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance & Accountancy) code of practice on treasury management in public 
services, the Council having previously adopted, via Cabinet, the then revised code of 
practice.  Associated treasury management Prudential Indicators were included in the 
February 2019 report. 
 
Prudential Indicators Monitoring  
 
Tables included in the report showed the monitoring information for each of the prudential 
indicators, limits and statements, which related to:- 
 

 External debt overall limits 

 Affordability   (eg. implications for Council Tax) 

 Prudence and sustainability  (eg. implications for external borrowing) 

 Capital expenditure  

 Other particular indicators for Treasury Management. 
 
Treasury Management Update 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
12 

The report included information on the on the current treasury position and a table showed 
debt, other long term liabilities against the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  A further 
table was provided which included information about the expected movement in interest 
rates for the period 2019 – 2021 and the reasons for and implications of those anticipated 
changes. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - To note the report 
 

218 Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates - Insolvency Policy 
 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided a report to seek 
Cabinet approval for the adoption of a new Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates 
Insolvency Policy – replacing a previous version from 2012 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates (business rates) Collection and 
Recovery Policy provides a foundation for our operations as it outlines the service that 
taxpayers can expect to receive as well as a transparent structure for the collection and 
recovery of tax due to the Council; a function which is essential to the funding of public 
services.   
 
Reduced Government funding places greater emphasis each year on the importance of 
collecting and recovering Council Tax and Business Rates and as further pilots for the local 
retention of Business Rates continue to refine the Government’s intentions for Business 
Rate retention schemes, it is required that the Council’s policies reflect its practices and 
essential that all polices provide for a robust but fair collection and recovery process. 
 
The Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates Insolvency Policy sets out the Council’s 
main processes and guidance on it practices for ratepayers when dealing with Insolvency 
for Council Tax and NNDR liabilities. 
 
In 2019/20, the Council have examined 25 accounts to determine whether they meet the 
legal criteria for commencement of insolvency, winding up or bankruptcy proceedings 
(“insolvency”).  Four insolvency hearings were scheduled for December 2019 with a further 
four cases awaiting hearing dates.  In total, we have served 17 statutory demands (the 
preliminary step in bankruptcy proceedings) with a total value of over £112,000.   
 
While the overall goal for insolvency is payment of arrears, the initiation of the insolvency 
process has meant that a number of debtors have engaged with us when other contact 
methods at our disposal in the recovery of arrears have not provided enough incentive to 
contact us and deal with the debts.   
 
The new policy differs from the 2012 policy in that it includes changes made to debt 
thresholds for individuals, updated references to Insolvency Rules 2016 and an updated pro 
forma for officers to use.  In the last 12 months, the Revenues Team working alongside 
colleagues in Legal Services have increased the Council’s efforts to recover debt via 
insolvency and while in general the Council’s procedures remain largely the same, smaller 
incremental changes such as these warranted a review of the policy as a whole. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
13 

 
Collection and Recovery of Council Tax and business rates works within legislative 
frameworks and the Council adopted its current guidelines in 2012.  Remaining with this 
policy does not affect the Council’s ability to collect and recover local taxes however the 
incremental changes made since 2012 means that regular update and review provides a 
more accurate reflection of everyday practices. 
 
The Insolvency Policy has been updated to reflect guidance provided by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman issued as a result of their findings from 
complaints regarding the handling of insolvency proceedings by local authorities.  The 
guidance recommends that a robust, up to date procedure is in place and that all 
information, inquiries and account files are ordered in such a way as to demonstrate the 
Council’s consistency of decision making and justification for insolvency – this is reflected in 
the updated referral forms and policy.   
 
Resolved - That the Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates 

Insolvency Policy set out at Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved and adopted. 

 
219 House to House Collections Policy 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided a report seeking 
approval to a House to House Collections Policy for the Council. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Licensing Service is responsible for regulating a wide range of functions including 
house to house collections.  However to date there has been no formal House to House 
Collections Policy adopted by this Council. 
 
House to house collections are governed by the House to House Collections Act 1939 and 
the House to House Collections Regulations 1947, as amended.  As a general rule, house 
to house collections for charitable, benevolent or philanthropic purposes, whether or not the 
purpose is charitable within the meaning of the rule of law, are required to be licensed by 
the authority in whose area they intend to collect.  The definition 'collection' extends beyond 
requests for money, to include the sale of magazines, requests for unwanted clothing and 
household items, visits to persuade persons to buy goods etc., where any part of the 
proceeds may go to charity. 
 
The only exception to the general rule is for organisations that have been granted an 
Exemption Certificate by the Home Office under the provisions of the House to House 
Collections Act 1939.  This certificate allows an organisation to collect in the district without 
applying for a licence.  The organisation must inform the authority of the dates and areas of 
any planned collections. 
 
The authority can refuse or revoke a licence for a number of reasons:- 
 

 If too high a proportion of the proceeds are to be spent on expenses; 

 If not enough of the proceeds are to be given to the charity or cause; 

 If incorrect information was provided on the application form; 

 If the promotor or any other person involved in the collection has been convicted of 
certain criminal offences, i.e. burglary, blackmail or fraud. 

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 
14 

 
There is a right of appeal to the Secretary of State against the refusal or revocation of a 
licence within 14 days from the date on which the notice is given of the refusal or 
revocation. 
 
Without a policy those that apply for a house to house collection licence in this district 
cannot be expected to know what is required of them and the proposed policy has been 
drafted to provide transparency and clarity on the requirements. 
 
The proposed policy sets out the proportion of the proceeds of any house to house 
collection that should be applied to the charitable purposes that the collection is being made 
for.  For this purpose it is recommended that 75% of the profits of house to house 
collections should be applied to the charity. 
 
The Licensing Manager is of the opinion that a Policy of this type is necessary due to the 
number of bogus companies that are setting up and carrying out house to house collections 
mainly for private gain.  The Association of Charity Shops estimates that charities lose 
between £2.5 million and £3 million a year through theft and people giving clothing to 
organisations which they think are charities but may be commercial companies collecting 
for profit. 
 
The policy will limit the number of days that any particular collection can take place over.  
This will allow more charities to have the opportunity to collect and it will ensure that 
householders are not inundated with several charities all collecting at the same time. 
 
In order to achieve its aims the Licensing Manager has identified the major issues and 
sought to tackle them through the policy with the intention of:- 
 

 Ensuring impartiality and fairness in determining applications; 

 Accommodating all eligible requests, subject to capacity, and bearing in mind that 
certain days and locations are especially sought after; 

 Providing equality of opportunity for would be collectors; 

 Avoiding causing undue nuisance to the public; 

 Setting fair maximum limits for one applicant; 

 Achieving a fair balance between local and national causes. 
 
In conclusion, Members are requested to approve the proposed House to House 
Collections Policy in order to help to deliver fairness and transparency to all involved. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the Draft House to House Collections Policy set out 

in the report be adopted. 
 

220 Huncoat Garden Village - Masterplan and Delivery Strategy Update 
 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, provided an update 
report on progress with the Huncoat Garden Village (HGV) Masterplan and Delivery 
Strategy (M&DS) and set out a timetable to conclude the M&DS. 
 
Councillor Dave Parkins raised the following issues on the report:- 
 

 Paragraphs 3.3(v) and 3.4(vi) – the original proposals had referred to a brand new 
junior school, but this had subsequently changed to increased provision on the 

Page 16



 
 
 

 

 
15 

same location or on a new site.  There were concerns regarding access to the 
existing site. 

 Paragraph 3.4(v) – there were concerns that if the size of the residential 
development did not reach the ‘tipping point’ for the construction of a distribution 
road, there would still be a significant increase in traffic, which would then be 
confined to existing roads which were already congested. 

 
Councillor Parkins also placed on record his thanks to Mark Hoyle, Head of Housing and 
Regeneration, and Chris Gregory, Housing Zone Project Manager, for keeping members of 
the Huncoat Forum updated on the project 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson expressed his approval regarding the proposals and looked 
forward to the formal Masterplan and Delivery Strategy being developed. 
 
The Leader of the Council commented that the detailed trigger points would be considered 
in due course.  However, the overall Masterplan was critical for Huncoat.  Otherwise, there 
was a risk that any development could be piecemeal and would not deliver the 
improvements envisaged for the village.  The Masterplan would provide a co-ordinated 
vision for the area. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Cabinet received reports in January 2017 and July 2018 establishing HGV as a major 
housing growth opportunity for up to 2,000 new homes in the Borough.  This was subject to 
putting in place an M&DS and emerging planning policy (the Local Plan).  Cabinet also 
supported the decision to appoint Arcadis Consultancy (UK) Limited at a cost of £174,443 
to support the Council in preparing an M&DS for HGV in partnership with Lancashire 
County Council and Homes England. 
 
The M&DS is being undertaken under four key stages: 
 

 Stage 1 – Evidence Base and Baseline Report; 

 Stage 2 – Option Development and Testing; 

 Stage 3 – Draft Framework Masterplan and Delivery Strategy Report; 

 Stage 4 – Review and Final Masterplan Framework production. 
 
Stages 1 and 2 have been provisionally concluded and consultation for the draft M&DS 
(Stage 3) has taken place.  The report included further details of the development principles 
that have been identified for HGV. 
 
The original timetable saw the Masterplan project commence early June 2018 and was 
scheduled to conclude January 2019.  It soon became clear the timetable was over 
ambitious and was reviewed and rescheduled to conclude late summer 2019.  In the spring 
of 2019 it was necessary to slow progress on the Masterplan for a number of significant 
reasons especially other key complementary and additional work, which is summarised 
below:- 
 

 Local Plan Review; 

 Highway implications; 

 Ecology; 

 Station and Rail Services; 

 Proposed distribution road; 

Page 17



 
 
 

 

 
16 

 Junior School provision; 

 Following consultation of a residential only HGV, two additional residential only 
options (in addition to the three mixed housing/employment options) need to be 
tested and developed for consideration: 

 
Council officers have negotiated a fee of £49,000 plus VAT with Arcadis (existing 
consultancy team) for the additional work described above.  The fee is consistent with rates 
submitted by Arcadis as part of their original tender submission and, therefore, Council 
officers are confident the additional cost reflects good value for money. 
 
As a result of the additional work, Council officers have agreed a revised timetable with 
Arcadis to conclude the M&DS, which is as follows:- 
 

 Revised highway baseline, including identification of the “tipping point” for new 
distribution road – by 24th January 2020; 

 Conclude additional residential only options and finalise revised Stage 2 report – by 
6th March 2020; 

 Produce and finalise Stage 3 report i.e. final draft M&DS – by 6th May 2020; 

 Produce agreed final M&DS report - by 15th June 2020. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Masterplan and Delivery Strategy has been subject to option development and analysis 
as part of the Masterplan process.  Three residential and employment options have been 
considered and as part of the additional work, two further residential options will be 
considered. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet notes and welcomes the progress being 

made to put a Masterplan and Delivery Strategy for 
Huncoat Garden Village in place which is a major 
opportunity for housing growth in the Borough. 

 
(2) That Cabinet notes and endorses spending a further 

£49,000 plus VAT on additional consultancy fees with 
Arcadis Consultancy (UK) Limited from existing budgets 
for additional Masterplan and Delivery Strategy costs to 
enable the Masterplan and Delivery Strategy to be 
concluded. 

 
(3) That Cabinet notes the extended timetable to conclude 

the Huncoat Garden Village Masterplan and Delivery 
Strategy as set out in the report. 

 
221 Financial Position November  2019 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2020 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided a report informing 
Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council up to the end of November 2019 and the 
financial forecast outturn position for the Accounting Year 2019/20.  Members considered a 
table within the report which set out the core financial details. 
 
Councillor June Harrison thanked Joe McIntyre, Deputy Chief Executive, and his team for 
ensuring that the Council’s finances remained ‘in the black’. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 

Page 18



 
 
 

 

 
17 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
The spend for the first 8 months of the financial year to the end of November 2019 is 
£7,542,000 compared to a Budget of £7,755,000 giving a positive variance of £214,000 
over the first 8 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2020 is £10,820,000 
compared to a Budget of £10,994,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£174,000 by the end of the financial year.  There are small adverse forecasts for Planning & 
Transportation, Policy & Corporate Governance, and Environmental Services.   
Regeneration and Property Services have a larger adverse variance of 13% of Budget.  
Elsewhere, positive variances are sufficient to produce an overall surplus for the year.  
 
Environmental Services  
 
Environmental Services are predicting a year end adverse variance of £36,000.  This stems 
from salary savings of £19,000 on Food Safety.  Waste Services’ income is up £35,000, 
along with £17,000 of salary savings and £103,000 positive variance on recycling, less 
£34,000 of additional miscellaneous expenditure for an overall £121,000 surplus on their 
budget.  Parks and Cemeteries are predicting a positive variance of £18,000 with the Parks 
Service indicating savings of £22,000 on salaries and £5,000 on miscellaneous costs offset 
by £36,000 of reduced income.  Cemeteries are predicting an additional £20,000 income 
this year and salary savings of £9,000 less £2,000 of additional extra miscellaneous spend.  
The Town Centre and Market Hall Budget is indicating an overall adverse variance of 
£194,000, comprising £190,000 reduced income at the Market Hall and income from CCTV 
down by £10,000, less £26,000 of salary savings reduced by £21,000 of additional 
expenditure.   
  
Culture & Leisure Services 
 
Culture and Leisure Services are indicating a positive variance of £26,000 due to £30,000 
of savings on leisure budgets less £4,000 additional net expenditure at the Haworth Art 
Gallery. 
  
Planning & Transportation  
 
Planning & Transportation are predicting an adverse variance for the year of £30,000.  This 
is due to a predicted shortfall in income compared to budget on Building Control of £65,000 
and additional salary expenditure in this area of £26,000.  Elsewhere on the Budget there 
are £27,000 of staff saving and £46,000 of additional income less £12,000 of miscellaneous 
additional expenditure. 
 
Regeneration & Property Services 
 
Regeneration & Property Services are predicting an adverse variance of £138,000 at year-
end with salary costs up by £93,000 over the year compared to budget and expected 
additional costs of £76,000, less £31,000 of additional income. 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance are predicting an adverse variance of £43,000.  This stems 
from salary savings of £181,000 less the Corporate Savings Target for the year of 
£165,000, predicted increases of £100,000 on Housing Benefit Costs, along with £2,000 of 
additional miscellaneous costs less £43,000 of additional income. 

Page 19



 
 
 

 

 
18 

 
Non Service Items 
 
The current estimate for the year is a positive variance of £395,000. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - Cabinet notes the report and asks Corporate Management 

Team to continue to reduce costs and increase income 
over the remaining months of the financial year. 

 
222 Disability Service - Specialist Accommodation Unit 

 
Reason for Urgency: Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, agreed that the following decision was urgent and could not 
reasonably be deferred on the grounds that the decision was required to facilitate 
communication to Lancashire County Council, as soon as possible, of this Council’s 
commitment to make a significant financial contribution to the County Council’s proposed 
development of a specialist accommodation unit in Great Harwood for adults with 
disabilities, so as to enable the project to proceed without delay 
 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, provided a report to 
bring to Cabinet’s attention Lancashire County Council’s intention to develop two specialist 
accommodation units; one for disabled adults and one for disabled children both in Great 
Harwood.  The report sought Cabinet’s approval to make a £300,000 contribution from the 
Council’s Capital Programme towards the adult specialist unit. 
 
The Leader of the Council commented that both he and Jenny Molineux, as county 
councillors representing Great Harwood, Rishton and Clayton-le Moors, were in favour of 
the proposals.  The former school had been closed for a number of years and the new 
proposals would provide essential respite care for both children and adults, which was vital 
in providing carers with a break from their normal responsibilities.  
 
Councillor Tony Dobson indicated that there would be cross-party support for this 
development.  He suggested that the County Council might wish to provide an information 
session to local councillors and residents at the site to keep them informed.  The Leader of 
the Council indicated that it was often the case that rumours started on social media, which 
gave a false impression of what facilities were planned.  It was important to get the right 
message out to the public.  He requested that the Head of Regeneration and Housing feed 
those comments back to colleagues at Lancashire County Council.  Bank Mill House was 
suggested as a possible venue for a public information meeting. 
 
Approval of the report was considered to be a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Lancashire County Council’s Disability Service has reviewed how it provides short break 
services to severely physically disabled adults including households with a learning 
disability and is proposing to build a new specialist unit in Great Harwood that:- 
 

 Accommodates individuals in an emergency that have significant behavioural 
problems that pose a risk to themselves and others; 

 Support care provision and prevent carer-breakdown, which could result in more 
costly placements for individuals; 

Page 20



 
 
 

 

 
19 

 Provide respite for families / carers that will enable individuals to remain in their 
home environment; 

 Support young people with complex needs in transition from children’s services. 
 
The new adult residential unit will provide seven ground floor bedrooms including 
communal space and specialist equipment.  The Council is being invited by Lancashire 
County Council to contribute £300,000 to the adult unit which will cost approximately £2.034 
million to construct. 
 
Lancashire County Council is also proposing to construct a similar specialist facility for 
disabled children at an estimated cost of £3.01 million on the same site (the Council is not 
being asked to contribute towards the children’s unit).  This means a total investment of 
£5.04 million in Great Harwood for new state of the art facilities for severely disabled 
households. 
 
Hyndburn Borough Council has accumulated a circa £652,000 underspend over several 
years from its Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding and therefore the County Council has 
approached the Council seeking a financial contribution of £300,000 from the underspend 
towards the adult accommodation unit (and not the children’s unit) 
 
DFG funding is part of the County Council’s Better Care Fund (BCF) and is distributed to 
the relevant Housing Authorities (District Councils in Lancashire) to support disabled 
households to remain living as independently as possible in their own homes. 
 
The support provided through the provision of the short break units will enable carers to 
take a break from continued caring responsibilities which in turn will assist them to continue 
to provide that vital care.  It also prevents carer breakdown which often results in care 
placement and will also support the placement of emergency accommodation for individuals 
displaying significant behavioural problems that pose a risk to themselves and others 
(safeguarding issues). 
 
Therefore, the County Council’s capital contribution to the adult accommodation unit 
supports the aims of the Better Care Fund priorities and supports individuals with 
disabilities to receive consistent supportive care which enables them to remain in their own 
homes and current caring situations.  For this reason using the DFG underspend is an 
appropriate and valuable use of this funding. 
 
Should Cabinet decide to support a £300,000 contribution towards the adult disabled unit 
from the Capital Programme the Council will seek to impose legal and financial conditions 
to ensure Hyndburn Borough Council’s financial contribution towards the adult unit is 
protected and used for the disabled adult specialised accommodation unit as proposed, 
including the following:- 
 

 Payment timing – Hyndburn Borough Council’s £300,000 contribution to be paid 
when the adult accommodation unit is first occupied; 

 Applying certain conditions to any future disposal of the unit proposed by Lancashire 
County Council; 

 Clawback Provisions should the unit cease to be used for adult disabled households 
in the future, within a variety of timeframes.  The Council could seek to impose a 
charge of title to secure the repayment obligations. 

 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

Page 21



 
 
 

 

 
20 

The Council does not have to make a financial contribution to the County Council’s new 
accommodation unit.  However, the Council has accumulated a significant DFG 
underspend which is ring-fenced for supporting disabled households to live independently.  
The £300,000 can therefore be considered an appropriate and worthy use of this funding, 
working in partnership with Lancashire County Council supporting the housing needs of 
disabled households. 
 
The Council has a very significant DFG funding programme and therefore a decision to 
make a £300,000 funding contribution to the County Council will not affect the Council’s 
ability in helping households with DFG’s. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet approves a £300,000 contribution from the 

Council’s Capital Programme as set out in the report 
towards Lancashire County Council’s proposed new 
specialist accommodation unit for physically disabled 
adults in Great Harwood, and 

 
(2) That Cabinet delegates authority to the Head of 

Regeneration and Housing to conclude the terms of the 
Council’s funding contribution following consultation 
with the Deputy Chief Executive, the Executive Director 
(Legal and Demographic Services) and with the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing and Regeneration. 

 
There were no items taken in private. 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 22



 

 
1 

 
REGENERATION AND HOUSING PANEL 

 

 
Monday, 10th June, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Loraine Cox (in the Chair), Councillors Tony Dobson, 

Stewart Eaves, Mohammad Ayub, Tim O'Kane and June Harrison 
 

Apologies Jean Battle, Joyce Plummer and Parkins 

  

 
42 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Parkins, Battle and 
Plummer.   
 
Councillor O’Kane and June Harrison acted as substitute representatives for Councillor 
Battle and Councillor Parkins, respectively. 
 

43 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest submitted at the meeting. 
 

44 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 14th January 2019 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel held on 14th 
January 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Agreed - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

45 Regeneration and Housing Capital Programme 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing and the Regeneration and Property Manager 
submitted a report on progress with the 2018/19 Regeneration and Housing Capital 
Programme.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that progress was being 
made to ensure programme delivery and spend in line with project budgets and approvals.   
 
He referred to key projects Phoenix 1D and Pendle Street and updated the Panel on their 
progress.  A brief outline on progress on face-lifting works in Woodnook was also provided.  
Reference was made to an increase in Government funding for Disabled Facility Grants 
(DFGs) allocations for 2019/20.  Hyndburn’s allocation for 2019/20 is £965,000.  He 
advised the Panel on how the funding could be utilised beyond mandatory DFGs to help 
vulnerable people to live independently.  He indicated that there would be a further report 
on the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy item later in the agenda.   
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager advised that slow progress was being made with 
the shop front works on Blackburn Road that makes up the current stage of the THI 
Accrington town centre work.  She explained that grant applications were progressing 
slower than the Council would like due to funding and legal issues. 
 
Councillor Dobson pointed out that all works should be completed by September 2019.  The 
Regeneration and Property Manager explained that a meeting had been organised to 

Public Document Pack

Page 23

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

discuss the slow take-up of shop front THI grants for shop fronts, at which the Council 
intend to ask for a 12 month extension to the funding deadline.  The Council is hopeful the 
request will be supported by Heritage Lottery. 

Agreed (1) That the report be noted; and 

 (2) That the comments on the 2019/20 Regeneration and 
Housing Capital Programme be noted. 

 
46 Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing informed the Panel that the Environmental 
Protection Manager had now left the authority and, as such, there were currently some 
capacity issues within the team with five posts vacant.  He explained what was being done 
to fill these roles.  He also reported that the Council proposes to refresh the Housing 
Renewal Policy and the Regeneration and Housing Team would be working on this in the 
forthcoming months.  He referred to the key policy areas including:  
 

 Education and Encouragement to provide information and advice to assist any 
person to improve, repair, adapt or rebuild residential premises.   

 Direct Financial Assistance where the Council would provide assistance to 
vulnerable households including the elderly and disabled including mandatory 
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) and non-mandatory DFGs, Emergency Works 
Grants, Facelift Grants and Relocation Assistance. 

 Indirect Financial Assistance where assistance may be provided by working in 
partnership to support regeneration and renewal of poor quality housing. 

 Enforcement Action which would allow the Council to use various powers to 
intervene and secure improvements where housing conditions were in disrepair 
and/or unacceptable.      

 
He reported that the aim was to create a revised Housing Renewal Policy by September 
2019. 
 
Members made observations and raised the following issues: 
 

 If DFGs could be used to make adaptations to a communal area where a patient 
was living in an upstairs flat. 

 If there would still be a future for Homewise? 

 If a means test would still be applied to requests for DFGs over £7,000. 

 A comment that people who had saved all of their life should still expect to receive 
something back in the form of DFGs. 

 How many extensions were provided yearly using DFGs. 

 The number of people requesting low value schemes. 

 Reference to the definition of facelift grants and the importance of emergency works 
grants in preventing people falling into the hospital system. 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing responded to the above queries.  He stressed that 
DFGs were ‘person related’ grants and therefore not appropriate for adaptations for 
communal areas.  He advised that there was still a role for Homewise in the future and that 
means testing would continue for DFGs over the value of £7,000.  He outlined details of the 
criteria for emergency works grants and informed the Panel that facelift grants were 
targeted neighbourhoods of greater need.  He gave details of the criteria for face-lifting 
properties and that the Policy would include information on enforcement work.   

Page 24



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Agreed (1) That the Panel noted the key policies for a new Housing 
Renewal Policy; and  

 (2) That Members’ comments on the proposed Policy areas 
set out in the report are noted by the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing. 

 
47 Meeting Housing Needs 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report to update the Panel on the 
progress with reviewing Hyndburn’s Homelessness Strategy.  He also reported on the 
review of the B with Us Allocations Policy.   
 
He referred to the work required to review the Council’s Homelessness Strategy and the 
areas it would cover.  He reported that there was not a great homelessness problem in 
Hyndburn because of an oversupply of housing, however, he explained homelessness did 
occur, usually emergency homelessness, but arrangements were in place to either prevent 
homelessness happening or to rehouse households with minimum delay.   
 
Councillor Dobson suggested that DFG money could be used for homeless people on the 
basis of preventing an impact on NHS services. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing advised that homeless revenue funding was 
already in place to support homeless people and that funding was used to provide support 
to enable vulnerable people to be able to remain in them.  In respect of teenagers who 
presented as homeless he informed the Panel that there was a legal duty to secure 
accommodation for them.   
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing informed the Panel that Hyndburn Borough Council 
was a member of the sub-regional choice based lettings partnership called B-with-Us which 
is a common allocations policy across East Lancashire and a review of this policy was 
currently being undertaken.  The implantation of the policy was scheduled for April 2020.   

Agreed (1) That the Panel noted the timetable and progress with 
reviewing Hyndburn’s Homelessness Strategy; and 

 (2) That the Panel noted the timetable and progress with 
undertaking the review of the B with Us Allocations 
Policy. 

 
48 Housing Growth 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report to update the Panel on progress 
with new housing opportunities and development across the Borough.  He reported on new 
housing development in the borough in line with the Council’s Housing Corporate Strategy.  
He pointed out that there had been some good progress with key housing sites across the 
borough and provided examples of this.  He also reported that other planning consents had 
not progressed because of viability issues and unrealistic land owner expectations on 
values.   
 
Members of the Panel discussed the five year supply of housing and the number of new 
properties required to meet Government targets.   
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing referred to the Huncoat Garden Village (HGV) and 
reported on the appointment of two firms of consultants to progress the HGV Masterplan 
and Delivery Strategy.  He advised that Members noted that once the Masterplan had been 

Page 25



 
 
 

 

 
4 

finalised it would be incorporated into Planning Policy.  He gave some details of the 
emerging Masterplan and informed the Panel that there had been delays due to the need 
for an ecological survey to help understand significant butterfly presence.  He reported that 
there had also been dialogue with Network Rail but this had been slower than expected.  
He also explained that the consultants were re-visiting the impact on the highway and 
possible ways of mitigating any increase in road traffic.   
 
Members would be consulted on the preferred option within the next 2 months once issues 
in respect of ecology, Network Rail and highways were concluded with the aim of the 
Masterplan and Delivery Strategy being completed in time for Cabinet in September or 
November 2019. 
 
Councillor Dobson asked if there was an increased risk of empty properties due to the 
growth plan for Huncoat Village Green site.  The Chair asked if there would be affordable 
housing on the site and if block buying by social housing providers would be permitted. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing acknowledged that there was a risk but this would 
have to be monitored explaining that people would leave Hyndburn if new modern homes 
were not built as well as meeting future household growth.  He also reported that plans 
included affordable housing as per planning policy.  He indicated that he would keep 
Members informed. 
 
Agreed - That the report and Members’ comments be noted. 
 

49 Urgent Business 
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

50 The Time and Date of Future Meetings: 
 
The next meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel was scheduled for Monday, 5th 
August 2019. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 26



 

 
1 

 
REGENERATION AND HOUSING PANEL 

 

 
Wednesday, 21st August, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Loraine Cox (in the Chair), Councillors Jean Battle, 

Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves and Parkins 
 

Apologies Joyce Plummer 

  

 
51 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Plummer.  Councillor Ayub 
was absent from the meeting. 
 
 

52 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest submitted at the meeting. 
 

53 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 10th June 2019 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel held on 10th June 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Agreed - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

54 Housing Renewal Funding 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing updated Members on housing renewal funding and 
provided details of progress on projects.  He explained that a lot of work had been carried 
out during the last 18 months in Council owned buildings including work on asbestos, health 
and safety matters and advised that systems were now in place to ensure that repairs and 
maintenance would be maintained. 
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager explained that Hyndburn Council had numerous 
assets for a small authority and referred to the challenges of cost, resources and the time 
required to maintain them in an adequate condition.   
 
Members asked for updates on the old Homeless Unit, Burnley Road and on the Cannon 
Street property.  The Regeneration and Property Manager reported that the old Homeless 
Unit on Burnley Road was checked every week and was secure.  She advised that there 
had been recent enquiries about this property and the Cannon Street property from 
potential purchasers.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing confirmed that the Council 
was trying to achieve best consideration.   
 
Establishment of a Working Group 
 
The Chair referred to the proposal to establish a Member Working Group.  She reported 
that the Panel would look at the Housing Renewal Funding allocation and administration of 
Disabled Facility Grants.  Two Members from each party would comprise the Working 

Public Document Pack

Page 27



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Group and it was proposed that these Members were the Chair, Councillor Loraine Cox, 
Councillor Battle, Councillor Dobson and Councillor Marlene Haworth.   

Agreed (1) That the report be noted; and   

 (2) That a Working Group be established to consider the 
Housing Renewal Funding allocation and administration 
of Disabled Facility Grants, comprising of two members 
of each party including the Chair of the Regeneration 
and Housing Panel. 

 
55 Capital Programme and Projects 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing referred Members to the report submitted on behalf 
of the Regeneration Manager in respect of the Regeneration and Housing Funding 
Programme.  Members were provided with information on the progress with the 2019/20 
Regeneration and Housing Funding Programme (capital and revenue).   
 

Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

56 Town Centre Shop Front Scheme - Presentation 
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager gave a presentation on the THI Shop Grants 
Update and referred Members to the map contained within the report and detailed the THI 
boundary and colour coded areas of priority.  She reported that the funding deadline and 
permissions for grants was due to expiry on 29th September 2019 and gave details of the 
approved purposes of THI funding.  She informed the meeting that the take up rate of 
grants for shop restorations had only improved with the increase of the grant rates to 90% 
and indicated that Heritage Lottery had been asked to extend the deadline until September 
2020.  Grants would be allocated on a first come first serve basis.  Members were given 
details of planned shop restoration schemes including Varsity, the former bank and the 
Burton’s building.  A number of options for over commitment were set out.   
 
Councillor Dobson asked for details of the plans for the shop restorations and to clarify if a 
number of shop had to apply for grants before funding was approved by Heritage Lottery.   
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager reported that that there was no minimum take up 
rate before Heritage Lottery would provide funding and explained that each grant would be 
tailored to the requirements of each property and considered on its merits.  In response to 
comments from Members about buildings that were considered eye sores, she pointed out 
that businesses could not be made to take up the grants.   
 
Members referred to the benefit of the scheme to the town and to other investments which 
may be carried out on the back of these schemes, and especially if improvements were 
made to the Burton, Varsity and Bed Centre buildings.  Councillor Parkins referred to the 
need for enforcement for a clean-up at the site of the former 61 – 77 Burton Building.  The 
Environmental Protection Manager indicated that he would inspect the area. 
 
Members referred to the importance of promoting commercial properties in Accrington 
Town Centre.  The Regeneration and Property Manager was requested to raise the issue 
with the Business and Marketing Co-ordinator. 

Resolved (1) That the Environmental Protection Manager inspects 61 
-77 Burton Building and undertakes any necessary 
enforcement action; 

Page 28



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 (2) That the Regeneration and Property Manager raises the 
issue of promotion of town centre commerce with the 
Business and Marketing Co-ordinator.  

 
57 B with Us Allocations Policy Review 

 
The Housing Strategy and Policy Manager submitted a report to update Members on the 
review of the B with Us Allocations Policy.  She reported that the Council was in partnership 
with Blackburn with Darwen, Burnley, Pendle and Rossendale Councils as well as local 
Registered Partners to create a choice based lettings partnership called B with Us.  She 
indicated that a review of the allocations policy was currently being undertaken to make it 
more fit for purpose and in line with more recent legal changes and new guidance.  She 
referred to a number of areas that required change as below: 
 

 Clarity in eligibility and qualification criteria and the removal of suspensions. 

 Local connection which will be exempt from some categories. 

 Disqualification for those with over £500 debt. 

 Income/Savings to disqualify those with equity over £120,000 from joining the 
register. 

 Five instead of four bandings to reflect changes in homeless priority. 
 
The Housing Strategy and Policy Manager also informed the Panel that consideration was 
being given to changing the software provider from Civica to Locator and that this decision 
would require the approval of Cabinet.  She referred Members to the timetable set out in the 
report for the adoption of a new software system. 
 
Members referred to a number of scenarios which Hyndburn residents had faced which 
they felt were not fair and that these issues should be considered when reviewing the 
allocations policy: a disabled lady requesting a transfer to a ground floor flat not being given 
priority, the Income/Savings criteria impacting the elderly who want to move to rent and that 
£120,000 is too low, the number of empty properties in Hyndburn against the number of 
people currently on the social housing waiting list. 

Resolved - That the report and Members’ comments be noted. 
 

58 Hyndburn Homelessness Strategy Refresh 
 
The Housing Strategy and Policy Manager gave a presentation on the Hyndburn 
Homelessness Strategy Refresh.  She reported on the overview of the Homelessness 
Strategy (2014 and 2019) and gave the priorities to prevent homelessness, reduce and 
tackle youth homelessness and worth with the private rented sector.  She provided details 
of how they had dealt with homelessness over the past five years and introduced and 
outlined the proposed new strategy.  The new strategy will include new provisions including 
Homelessness legislation and a joint approach to preventing homelessness.  She referred 
to a stakeholder consultation and the challenges an improved strategy will have to deal with 
in the coming years.   
 
Members asked and commented on the following: 

 If the true number of rough sleepers was known and if empty properties could be put 
to use to reduce homelessness.   

 Concern about the number of young people sleeping on the streets.   

 It was suggested that Government money should be used to increase Maundy 
Relief’s involvement with homelessness and make a business case for partnership 
work with the Council, Onward Homes and Maundy Relief.  

Page 29



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 It was also suggested that the Council purchased a property to house the homeless.   

 Other concerns related to organisations doubling up on the work of each other and 
potentially wasting funding received and that there should be a more co-ordinated 
approach.   

 
The Housing Strategy and Policy Manager reported that Accrington now had approximately 
12 rough sleepers, an increase on last year but pointed out that private landlords could be 
reluctant to take homeless people.  She reported that the Council did a lot of work with 
Calico Housing Association but all approaches would be considered.  In respect of young 
people she reported that there were different routes that could be used to rehouse a young 
homeless person but that the needs of the person were paramount in deciding how to 
approach each case.  She gave details of the time scale for implementing a new strategy.   

Resolved - That the report and Members’ comments be noted.  
 

59 Environmental Protection 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing informed the Panel of the new style of report, 
circulated to Members, that would be submitted to future meetings with a focus on 
performance. 
 
The Environmental Standards Manager referred to the Council’s strategy of taking 
enforcement action against blighted sites and unacceptable habitats.  He explained how the 
Council could take action and the length of time this could take.  He reported that there had 
been an increasing number of complaints about sites and that the Council did try to get 
quick resolutions where possible.  He indicated that attempts were made to engage with 
those at fault and although this usually worked, and where it did not, the legal route was 
used but this could be a lengthy process.   
 
Members requested further information on actions taken by the Council on a number of 
blighted sites including: 
 

 The Calder, Blackburn Road 

 Hargreaves Warehouse, Church 

 Tyres on the pavement opposite the Hargreaves Warehouse site 

 Fly tipping in the town centre   

 10 Wilfrid Street, Woodnook – no roof on the building 

 4 Tenison Avenue (front and rear gardens) 

 Shop on Lord Street. 

 Oswaldtwistle Paladium  
 
The Environmental Standards Manager reported that sites were secured but sometimes the 
Council did not have the powers to take action and that they had to make referrals to other 
public bodies such as Lancashire County Council.  He indicated that he would note and 
inspect the sites mentioned above. 
 
The Environmental Standards Manager reported on the removal of category 1 hazards for 
residential dwelllings and informed the meeting that the performance indicators recorded 
data which allowed sites to be monitored and which would provide statistical data such as 
the time taken to clear cases.  He indicated that future reports would include targets. 

Agreed - That the report be noted.  
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
60 Urgent Business 

 
There was no urgent business. 
 

61 The Time and Date of Future Meetings: 
 
The next meeting of the Regeneration and Housing Panel was due to take place on 14th 
October 2019. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



 

 
1 

 
REGENERATION AND HOUSING PANEL 

 

 
Monday, 14th October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Loraine Cox (in the Chair), Councillors Jean Battle, 

Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Joyce Plummer and Dave Parkins 
 

Apologies Mohammad Ayub 

  

 
62 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Ayub. 
 
Councillor June Harrison acted as substitute on behalf of Councillor Ayub.   
 

63 Declarations of Interest 
 
No declarations of interest were submitted at the meeting. 
 

64 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 21st August 2019 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing referred to the following items in the minutes: 
 
Item 54:  Housing Renewal Funding – Establishment of a Working Group  
 
Members were informed that a meeting of the Disabled Facility Grants Working Group had 
been organised.  
 
Item 56:  Town Centre Shop Front Scheme – Presentation 
 
Councillor Battle referred to the problem of shop fronts and the age of the buildings.  The 
Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that various shops were at various stages of 
improvement and all was progressing well.   
 
Item 57:  B With Us Allocations Policy Review 
 
It was reported that the comments made by Members at the last meeting to the East Lancs. 
wide network group and indicated that these would be take into consideration when 
reviewing the Policy.   
 
Item 58:  Hyndburn Homelessness Strategy Refresh 
 
Members were informed that the Hyndburn Homelessness Strategy refresh had been 
driven by the Homeless in Hyndburn Forum. 
 
Members suggested that the former Tax Office would provide suitable accommodation for 
homeless people.  They requested that this matter was given consideration. 
 
Members reported chemicals on the Hargreaves Warehouse site and requested that these 
were removed.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing referred to blighting on this site 
over many years and the constant need for action and that this site was currently being 

Public Document Pack

Page 33



 
 
 

 

 
2 

monitored.  Reference was also made to repairs required to the property at 10 Wilfrid Street 
and the Paladium, Oswaldtwistle.     
 

Agreed - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 

 
65 Housing Renewal Funding Update 

 
The Regeneration Manager reported on progress with the 2019/20 Regeneration and 
Housing Funding Programmes (Capital and Revenue).  She reported of a £5.5 million total 
capital programme for 2019/20 and pointed out that it would be unlikely that the full amount 
would be spent during this financial year.  Reasons for this were mainly the large scale of 
the capital programme and capacity issues. 
 
Members asked how work was contracted and were informed that appointments were 
made using the Council’s procurement rates.  They were informed that offices were looking 
to streamline processes better in order to work smarter.  
 
The Regeneration Manager informed the Panel that steps were being taken to recruit 
personnel into the vacant posts within the Regeneration Section to replace the two Oficers 
leaving.  She referred Members to Appendix 1 to Regeneration and Housing Funding 
Programmes and highlighted a number of individual projects.   
 

Agreed - That the report be noted. 
     
 

66 Environmental Protection Performance Monitoring 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing circulated a report in relation to Environmental 
Protection performance and indicated that the report considered two of three Key 
Performance Indicators.   
 
Councillor Plummer reported that she had received a number of complaints about an empty 
property in the Peel ward (40 Avenue Parade) and requested that this be investigated.     
 
Councillor Dobson pointed out that there had been a big difference on Willows Lane in 
respect of blighted sites and suggested that the use of technology had contributed to this.   
 
Councillor Battle reported that a number of downspouts were being taken down by 
residents causing some problems to properties/neighbouring properties when raining 
heavily.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing indicated that he would check the 
legislation in this respect.     
 

Agreed (1) That the report be noted; and  
 (2) That the Head of Regeneration and Housing checks 

legislation in respect of whether properties were 
required to have downspouts. 

 
 

67 Global Resettlement Scheme 
 
The Housing Strategy and Policy Manager submitted a report to inform Members of the 
introduction of the Global Resettlement Scheme.  Members were informed that details of 
the scheme were attached at appendix 1.   

Page 34



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that there was a new Government 
programme for resettling refugees from all around the world.  He indicated that there was 
another programme in Hyndburn to take a further 10 refugee families within the next 5 
years with 5 families in each cluster.  He explained the difference between asylum seekers, 
who have to leave their accommodation once their application for asylum had been 
determined.   
 
Councillor Dobson referred to residents from London who had settled in the borough 
recently.  He reported that there was some kind of deal to resettle people in the Shires.  
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that many London boroughs were fulfilling 
their homelessness duties by settling people elsewhere, which legislation enables them to 
do.  He also confirmed that the Council were aware of one household from London who had 
moved into the Barnfield ward. 
 

Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

68 Housing Growth 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report to update the Panel on progress 
with new housing opportunities and development across the Borough.  He provided 
updates on the following developments: 

- Lyndon Park development,  
- Parker Place, Rishton 
- St. James’ Court, Church 
- Foxwood Chase, Huncoat 
- Thwaites Road 

 
He reported that all of the above developments were selling well with the exception of 
Huncoat which make slow progress but was now completed and Thwaites Road which was 
currently being developed.   
 
Members referred to problems created by the development on Thwaites Road for residents 
and asked if anything could be done.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing advised this 
would have to be raised with the Planning Team.  
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that there were new housing opportunities 
for Victoria Street - Oswaldtwistle, Millerfold - Accrington, Ribblesdale Avenue - Accrington 
and Yorkshire Street - Huncoat.  A number of potential planning pre-applications were also 
referred to including Britannia Mill – Great Harwood, Spring Street - Rishton, Rhoden Road 
– Oswaldtwistle and Woodnook Mill - Accrington.   
 
Members commented that there had been methane gas spillage problems in previous 
planning permission in relation to Ribblesdale Avenue and asked if this had been resolved.  
The Head of Regeneration and Housing advised that this would have to be addressed in 
the planning application. 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing reported that developers could sort out 
contaminated sites much more easily these days.  The Head of Regeneration and Housing 
also reported that the Huncoat Masterplan had been slowed down to ensure consistency.     
 

Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

69 Urgent Business 
 

Page 35



 
 
 

 

 
4 

There was no urgent business. 
 

70 The Time and Date of Future Meetings: 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 36



 

 
1 

 
CABINET WASTE AND RECYCLING GROUP 

 

 
Thursday, 19th December, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Paul Cox (in the Chair), Councillors Michael Miller 

 

Apologies Stephen Button and Joyce Plummer 

  

 
34 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Councillors Button and Plummer submitted their apologies for absence. 
 
There were no substitutions. 
 

35 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

36 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 10th June 2019 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting held on 10th June 2019 were submitted for approval.   
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

37 Matters Arising 
 
Councillor Miller referred to minute 26 relating to appropriate licences and permits held by 
Rishton Recycling Ltd.  The Executive Director (Environment) pointed out that Hyndburn 
Borough Council no longer used Rishton Recycling Ltd. to process waste and confirmed 
that this waste was now sent to Lancashire County Council to deal with.  Councillor Miller 
pointed out the importance of having measures in place to deal with the disposal of waste 
properly.   
 

38 New Recycling Service Update 
 
The Executive Director (Environment) reported on the progress of the implementation of the 
new recycling service 12 months ago.  He reported that the introduction of the recycling 
bins had contributed to a reduction in litter and a positive response from both residents and 
members of staff.  He referred to the comprehensive service provided by Hyndburn, which 
was now only just beginning to be introduced by other Councils.  He referred to the different 
waste types and how the demographics of the borough affected the collection rates.   
 
The Chair suggested that an item was placed on the next Newsround to share how well the 
Waste Services staff had done with the new recycling collection service.  The Executive 
Director (Environment) agreed to ensure that this was done. 
 
Agreed - That the Executive Director (Environment) places on 

item on Newsround to share the success of the new 
recycling collection service. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 37



 
 
 

 

 
2 

39 Recycling Collections 
 
The Executive Director (Environment) reported that the 2018/19 recycling tonnages had 
been uploaded to the national Waste Dataflow database and that the Council’s recycling 
rate would show a slight increase to 34% and that there would be a further increase would 
hopefully further increase in 2019/20.   
 
The Chair referred to targets required of Councils particularly to reduce the amount of 
waste going to landfill.     
 
Councillor Miller suggested that Hyndburn pushed for an East Lancashire Waste Strategy 
to include the use of more transfer stations.  He also asked why there had been a delay in 
providing details of tonnage so late in the year and pointed out that they were nearly nine 
months behind.  The Executive Director (Environment) explained that the Government 
publishes the data in December for the preceding financial year (the latest being 
2018/2019).  Councillor Miller was also informed the Council had not currently determined 
the inclusion of Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) in any of their future plans as this would 
probably be addressed through the Lancashire Waste Strategy.   
 
The Executive Director (Environment) reported on the arson attack in the Council’s vehicle 
compound opposite the Willows Lane officers which had destroyed the five waste collection 
vehicles and that there was an ongoing Police investigation.  The Executive Director 
(Environment) informed the meeting that the department’s disaster recovery policy was 
activated and replacement vehicles were delivered over the following two days.  All waste 
collections had caught up by the Friday as the incident had happened on the Monday 
evening.  
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
  
 
 

40 Garden Waste Subscription Service 
 
The Executive Director (Environment) provided statistical information with regards to the 
garden waste subscription service and informed the meeting that the Council would be 
higher up the recycling tables if they were able to collect greater amounts of green waste.  
However, he explained that this would not be possible due to the significant number of 
terraced properties in Hyndburn but suggested the increase in new builds with gardens may 
increase the amount of green waste collected in future years, if householders subscribed to 
the service.  In respect of the garden waste subscription he indicated that there had been a 
very slight increase in numbers on the year before.   
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

41 Household Waste Recycling Centre (Whinney Hill) 
 
The Executive Director (Environment) reported on the changes to opening times the 
Household Waste Recycling Centres by Lancashire County Council although pointed out 
that Whinney Hill would remain open 7 days per week.   
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

42 Commercial Collections 
 

Page 38



 
 
 

 

 
3 

The Executive Director (Environment) reported on the number of commercial collections 
carried out by the Council and referred to the amount regularly recycled.   
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

43 Climate Change and the Environment 
 
The Executive Director (Environment) pointed out that the Government had declared a 
climate change emergency and explained that the highly anticipated Environment Bill and 
Strategy had received its second reading before Parliament was dissolved for the General 
Elections and that there was uncertainty of whether the Bill could continue through the 
Parliamentary process or if it would have to start again.  He reported that all Heads of 
Service had been asked for suggestions of ways to reduce carbon emissions and outlined a 
number of ways that Waste Services could contribute including the replacement and use of 
electric vehicles and increasing rates of recycling.   
 
Councillor Miller pointed out that this would have a significant impact on waste services and 
forecasting in the future and the need to finance these changes.  
 
The Executive Director (Environment) indicated that electric vehicles in the Waste collection 
marketplace were still under road testing and only just starting to become available for 
purchasing.  However, indications were that these would be double to the cost of the 
current vehicles with diesel engines, although electric lifters could be considered on any 
replacement fire damaged vehicles. 
  
The Executive Director (Environment) reported that officers would continue to push 
Lancashire County Council, as the disposal authority, for financial support to improve and 
expand recycling opportunities for Hyndburn residents. 
 
Agreed - That the report be noted. 
 

44 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Date of Next meeting would confirmed for early Summer.   
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



 

1 
 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 12 February 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Loraine Cox  - Housing  

REPORT AUTHOR: Fiona Goodfellow 

Housing Strategy & Policy Manager 

TITLE OF REPORT: Global Resettlement Scheme 

Request for Procurement Rules Exemption 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek a waiver of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in respect of the purchase 

of casework support as required for the Global Resettlement Scheme implementation 
in Hyndburn. 

 
1.2 To seek a waiver of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in respect of the purchase 

of voluntary sector support as required for the Global Resettlement Scheme 
implementation in Hyndburn. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
 I recommend that Cabinet:- 
 
2.1 Waive the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in respect of the appointment of Calico 

Enterprise Ltd to provide casework support for a period of 2 years for the refugee 
households arriving in Hyndburn in July 2020 as part of the Global Resettlement 
Scheme.  

 
2.2 Waive the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in respect of the appointment of 

Maundy Relief (on behalf of THRIVE) to provide voluntary sector support for a period 
of 2 years for the refugee households arriving in Hyndburn in July 2020 as part of the 
Global Resettlement Scheme. 

 
2.3 Delegates authority to the Head of Regeneration and Housing in consultation with the 

Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Housing services to agree the terms of the 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6.



 

2 
 

Council’s agreement with Calico Enterprise Ltd and Maundy Relief and the terms of the 
Local Authority Agreement between the Council and Lancashire County Council. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
 Global Resettlement Scheme (GRS) 
 
3.1 This programme is being introduced by the Home Office from 2020/21 and will 

consolidate all current resettlement programmes for refugees. Lancashire has been 
asked to be involved by the Home Office and Lancashire County Council is the lead 
authority for its co-ordination on behalf of all Local Authorities in Lancashire. 

 
3.2 The GRS will broaden the geographical focus beyond the Middle East and North Africa 

region. Therefore refugees could come from many countries including Syria, Iraq, Iran, 
Somalia and Sudan.  

 
3.3 The funding structure and delivery of the programme for the first cohort arriving in 

2020/21 will be very similar to the current Syrian Resettlement Programme in 
Lancashire. Both the funding structure and numbers beyond 2020/21 are subject to 
agreement from the Treasury. 

 
3.4 Local Delivery – all Lancashire local authorities have been requested to pledge and 

commit to resettle 10 refugee households over a 5 year period. Hyndburn has 
committed to receive the first 5 households in July 2020. Preparations are now 
underway to enable this to happen. 

 
3.5 Whilst a lot of the arrangements and logistics are co-ordinated by Lancashire CC there 

are numerous responsibilities on Hyndburn Borough Council to undertake prior to the 
refugees arrival. These will be detailed in the Agreement between LCC and the Council 
(to be agreed) and include the following:- 

 
3.6 Sourcing suitable self-contained accommodation for the families. Onward Homes, who 

provided the accommodation for the 10 Syrian Refugee households who arrived in July 
2018, have agreed to source and provide houses for the 5 families arriving in July 2020 
under the GRS. As before we will need a variety of property sizes i.e. 2, 3 and 4 
bedrooms to match the household sizes arriving - full details of the size and make-up 
of Hyndburn’s households will be known in April / May 2020. The properties will be 
located in the Accrington area so the households have easy access to services, 
facilities etc. There is no requirement for a formal agreement between the Council and 
Onward Homes as the Council is only signposting the refugee households to the 
housing and will not be taking any responsibility for the management of the properties. 
Onward Homes will be responsible for co-ordinating and undertaking the housing 
management activities which include the preparation of the properties (repairs, 
carpeting and furnishing, utilities, tenancy agreements) for the households prior to 
arrival. 

 
3.7 Casework Support Service – under the Lancashire programme the Council is required 

to establish or commission a system of casework support to the refugees which shall 
be made available to individuals and families for the first 2 years following their arrival. 

Page 42



 

3 
 

The casework support includes initial reception arrangements and intensive orientation 
support in the first 2/3 weeks following arrival. Following this period ongoing support, 
bespoke to each family, will be provided during the first 12 months. The level of 
support for the following 12 months will be ‘stepped down’ and will be less intensive to 
encourage independence. Casework Support is fundamental in assisting the refugee 
families to settle in and achieve self-sufficiency and independence. Frontline support 
workers will work with the families on a 1 to 1 basis and includes the following: - 
settling into the property, orientation of home and local area, registering at GP’s, Job 
Centre Plus and schools, helping with bank accounts etc.  Further guidance and details 
of the support required for Syrian Refugees is contained within the LGA Publication: 
‘Syrian Refugee Resettlement: A Guide for Local Authorities’. 

 
3.8 It is proposed that the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules are waived in order to 

award the contract for the provision of the ‘casework support service’ detailed to Calico 
Enterprise Ltd without first testing the market. Calico Enterprise delivered a highly 
successful floating support service across East Lancashire for many years and has 
built up significant knowledge and skills around the delivery of casework support. 
Additionally Calico has been providing a successful casework support service for 
Syrian Resettlement in Hyndburn over the last 18 months. Calico is a trusted local 
service provider who works closely with the Council. They will also be able to build on 
the existing staff knowledge and skills developed over the last couple of years working 
with the refugee community. There is not another local service provider with dual skills 
of casework support and experience of working intensively with refugee households. It 
will also ensure continuity of service delivery. 

 
3.9 Voluntary Sector Support - during the first 2 years of resettlement under the GRS the 

Council will receive some dedicated funding (Local Integration Fund) via LCC to assist 
local voluntary sector groups in the delivery of the cultural, social, educational and 
recreational elements of the programme e.g. English conversation classes, trips, 
events, cultural awareness sessions, IT classes, arts, crafts and gardening groups etc. 

 
3.10 Again it is proposed that the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules are waived in order to 

award the contract for the provision of voluntary sector support detailed to Maundy 
Relief on behalf of the THRIVE partnership – an informal grouping of six local third 
sector organisations (Adventure Hyndburn, Citizens Advice Rossendale & Hyndburn, 
Community Solutions North West, HARV, Homewise and Maundy Relief) without first 
testing the market. They have been successfully co-ordinating and delivering the 
voluntary sector support to the Syrian refugee households since they arrived in July 
2018 and have developed detailed knowledge and understanding of the refugee 
community in Hyndburn. This will also ensure continuity of service delivery. 

 
3.11 A procurement / tendering exercise does not appear to be sensible in the 

circumstances as it could add to the costs in undertaking the procurement process and 
will cause delays in commencing service provision that needs to be in place well before 
the arrival date in July. The Council will enter into a legal agreement with Calico 
Enterprise Ltd for the casework support and Maundy Relief for the voluntary sector 
support which will specify details of the services to be provided.  

 

Page 43



 

4 
 

3.12 The GRS is delivered at nil cost to the Council. Grant funding is provided for the 
programme through the Home Office via Lancashire CC. The indicative budgets for 
2020/21 and 2021/22 in respect of the 5 households being settled in Hyndburn include 
£10k per year for the voluntary sector support and £67,500 over 2 years for the 
casework support. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 The Council could undertake a procurement exercise to choose a service provider for 

the above services but this is not recommended for the reasons stated in paragraph 
3.8 3.10 and 3.11. 

 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Consultation and discussion about Hyndburn’s commitment to the Global Resettlement 

Scheme has been discussed at the Lancashire Refugee Resettlement Programme 
Steering group co-ordinated by LCC that meets bi-monthly. Locally the Hyndburn 
Asylum and Refugee Partnership has been consulted and there is considerable 
support from partner agencies in the borough. Additionally a report was taken to 
Regeneration and Housing Panel on 14th October 2019 when support was given to 
Hyndburn Borough Council participating in the scheme. 

 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

The GRS is delivered at nil cost to the Local 
Authority. Grant funding is provided for the 
programme through the Home Office via 
Lancashire CC. Costs will be reimbursed. 
The indicative budget for 2020/21 and 
2021/22 delivery is £67.5k for Casework 
Support Services and £10k for the Local 
Integration Fund. Any rent loss incurred by 
Onward Homes keeping the properties empty 
prior to the refugee’s arrival will also be 
reimbursed. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

An agreement will be in place between LCC 
and the Council for the awarding of the 
funding for the programme to the Council. It 
will also detail the role and obligations of both 
partners. A grant agreement will be agreed 
between the Council and Calico Enterprise 
for the delivery of the casework support and 
between the Council and Maundy Relief for 
the voluntary sector support. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risk in relation to service delivery will be 
managed by monitoring fulfilment of the terms 
of the grant agreements with Calico 
Enterprise and Maundy Relief. 

Page 44



 

5 
 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

The Council is part of the Lancashire wide 
Global Resettlement Scheme and equality 
and diversity issues have been considered as 
part of this programme particularly through 
the Lancashire Refugee Integration Strategy. 
Calico Enterprise will address community 
cohesion issues and help the Syrian Refugee 
households integrate into the local 
community as part of the delivery of the 
casework support referred to in this report. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Copies of documents included in this list must be open to inspection and, in the case of 
 reports to Cabinet, must be published on the website.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 
 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 12 February 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Wendy Redfern, Licensing Manager 

TITLE OF REPORT: Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The report seeks members’ approval of the adoption of the attached Policy and 

standard conditions for the licensing of pavement cafes under section 115E of the 
Highways Act 1980 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the attached Draft Policy and conditions are approved. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 For members information Schedule 5 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 Part 1 inserted, amongst other matters, Section 115 into the 
highways Act 1980. 

 
3.2 Under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980, a district Council may grant permission 

for the service, amenities, recreation and refreshment facilities on pedestrianised areas 
of the highways. 

 
3.3 The powers can be used to licence street cafes to enable premises fronting on 

pedestrian areas to have tables and chairs outside the premises for their customers. 
 
3.4 Alfresco eating is becoming a more widespread aspect of urban life and the presence 

of tables and chairs on the pavement can make a positive contribution by adding 
vitality, colour, life and interest to an area. Hyndburn Borough Council supports and 
encourages the provision of pavement cafes in the area as they can help maximise the 
use of public spaces, aid the local economy and add to the facilities offered to people 
who visit, live, and work in Hyndburn.  

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7.



Page 2 of 3 
 

3.5 Whilst the Council wishes to encourage pavement cafes, it is important that they are 
properly located and managed. This is to ensure that they meet the standards we 
expect in Hyndburn and that they do not obstruct the highway nor create a hazard for 
pedestrians, especially for blind, partially sighted and other disabled people.  

 

3.6 The area to be used must take into account other needs in the immediate vicinity e.g. 
kerbside parking, bus stops and pedestrian crossings. Pedestrians’ needs must be 
paramount. The expanse of the pavement cafe must not conflict with any access or 
dropped crossings that are required for free passage of normal road users. Barriers 
and tapping rails should be positioned and maintained to the satisfaction of Hyndburn 
Council and should be totally removed outside the permitted hours of operation of the 
cafe, restaurant or bar. 

 
3.7 In order to ensure that Pavement Cafes are run in such a manner so as to enhance the 

area and not to cause a problem to others using the pedestrianised areas, it is 
important that a robust policy is in place to deal with the issuing and maintenance of 
the licences issued under the Highways Act 1980. 

 
3.8 The granting of such permissions is similar to the processing of other licensing 

applications dealt with by the licensing section and, as many of the premises likely to 
apply under the Highways Act 1980 are likely also to have premises licences issued 
under the Licensing Act 2003, it seems sensible for them to be dealt with within the 
same service.   

 
3.9 Under Section 115F of the Highways Act 1980, a Council may attach such conditions 

as the feel fit to a Street Cafe licence.  It is thought appropriate that the standard 
conditions set out in Appendix 1 to the Policy should be approved by this committee.   

 
3.10  Based on the predicted time spent on administering and controlling pavement cafes it 

is proposed that the application fee should be set at £125.   
 
3.11 Members are recommended to approve the proposed Policy and standard conditions 

for pavement cafe licences and to approve the application fee of £125. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 None 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Lancashire County Council Highways department have been informed and have 

offered no objections to the proposals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Page 3 of 3 
 

6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

 
None the cost of administering the regime will 
be covered by the fees.  

Legal and Human Rights 
implications 
 

 
None 

Assessment of risk 
 

 
No specific risks have been identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
 

The Council is subject to the public sector 
equality duty introduced by the Equality Act 
2010. When making a decision in respect of 
the recommendations in this report Cabinet 
must have regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation; and 

 advance equality of opportunity 
between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who 
don’t; and 

 foster good relations between those 
who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who don’t. 

For these purposes the relevant protected 
characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Hynbdburn Borough Council - Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy 
 Conditions attached to a pavement licence 
 Application for a pavement cafe licence 
 Customer First Analysis 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hyndburn Borough Council’s 
 

Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy 
 
 
 

October 2020 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents  
 

1. Introduction................................................................................................................. 3  
 

2. Legal Framework and Controls.................................................................................. 4  
 

3. Private Land............................................................................................................... 6  
 

4. Right of Access.......................................................................................................... 6 
  

5. Advertising................................................................................................................. 6 
  

6. Designing the Pavement Cafe................................................................................... 6  
 

7. Minimum Unobstructed Space Criteria ..................................................................... 7  
 

8. Lighting .....................................................................................................................  7  
 

9. Tables and Chairs shall be: .....................................................................................   7  
 

10. Parasols ..................................................................................................................    8  
 

11. Space Heaters..........................................................................................................   8 
 

12.  Barriers  ..................................................................................................................   9 
 

13.  Managing the street café & Insurance ...................................................................    9 
 

14. Hours of Operation..................................................................................................   10 
 

15. Granting of a licence..............................................................................................     11  
 

16. Appendix 1 Conditions attached to a Pavement Licence…………………………….   11  

 
17. Appendix 2 - Application Form............................................................................  14 

 
 

 

Page 52



 

3 
 

1. Introduction  
 
Alfresco eating is becoming a more widespread aspect of urban life and the presence of 
tables and chairs on the pavement can make a positive contribution by adding vitality, 
colour, life and interest to an area. Hyndburn Borough Council supports and encourages 
the provision of pavement cafes in the borough? as they can help maximise the use of 
public spaces, aid the local economy and add to the facilities offered to people who visit, 
live, and work in Hyndburn.  
 
Tables and chairs placed on the highway without permission can be illegal as they could 
amount to an obstruction. However, permission to use the highway for pavement cafes 
may be granted by the Council under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980. 
  
Accordingly, whilst the Council wishes to encourage pavement cafes, it is important that 
they are properly located and managed. This is to ensure that they meet the standards 
we expect in Hyndburn and that they do not obstruct the highway nor create a hazard for 
pedestrians, especially for blind, partially sighted and other disabled people.  
 
The area to be used must take into account other needs in the immediate vicinity e.g. 
kerbside parking, bus stops and pedestrian crossings. Pedestrians’ needs must be 
paramount. The expanse of the pavement cafe must not conflict with any access or 
dropped crossings that are required for free passage of normal road users. Barriers and 
tapping rails should be positioned and maintained to the satisfaction of Hyndburn 
Council and should be totally removed outside the permitted hours of operation of the 
cafe, restaurant or bar.  
 
The pavement cafe is normally expected to be in an area directly in front of and be 
visible from the existing premises. Emergency exit routes, including those of adjacent 
buildings, should not be obstructed by the pavement cafe and emergency service 
vehicles must have access along all streets at all times, even in pedestrianised streets.  
In general, all parts of the highway may be used for Pavement Cafe's, assuming all 
safety and non-obstruction requirements are met. The exceptions are:  
 

 Any carriageway or 'shared use surface'  

 Any highway verge  

 Where width of the pavement makes it impractical.  

 Where authorised street furniture makes it impossible  
 
Licences will not normally be granted where; 
  

 A significant effect on road safety would arise either from the siting of the tables 
and chairs, or from customers visiting or leaving the licensed area, or  

 Where there are concerns over the recorded level of personal injury accidents in 
the locality where the tables and chairs will be sited, or  

 

 There would be a significant loss of amenity caused by traffic, noise, rubbish, 
potential for the harbourage of vermin, odour or fumes, or  

 There is a conflict with Traffic Orders, such as waiting restrictions, or  

 The site obstructs either pedestrian or vehicular access, or traffic flows, or places 
pedestrians in danger when in use, or  

Page 53



 

4 
 

 The tables and chairs obstruct the safe passage of users of the footway or 
carriageway, or  

 The area to be licensed interferes with sight lines for any road users such as at 
road junctions, or pedestrian crossing facilities, or  

 The site does not allow the licence holder, staff and customers to park in a safe 
manner, or  

 The trading activity is carried out after dusk and the site is not adequately lit to 
allow safe access and egress from the site for both customers and staff.  

 The existing toilet and washing facilities are not adequate to accommodate an 
increased number of customers using the pavement cafe, or  

 The Council is not satisfied that applicants have made satisfactory arrangements 
for the storage and collection of all refuse associated with their business or  

 The Council is not satisfied that applicants have made satisfactory arrangements 
for the storage of all tables and chairs off the highway without impeding any 
access or egress from the premises.  

 
In considering the above matters, the standard guidance will be that a licence will only 
be issued if an unimpeded pedestrian route can be maintained at all times. The route 
shall ensure that all pedestrians and particularly those with a disability can maintain their 
normal path where feasible. All applications will be considered on their own merits. 
  
Pavement cafe licences will only be issued to cafes, restaurants, public houses or other 
catering establishments that serve food and drink within the premises. 
  
The Council will carry out periodic inspections to make sure that all the terms and 
conditions of the licence are being observed. 
  
A pre-licensing visit will be made to each premises upon receipt of an application for the 
granting, renewal or variation of a pavement cafe licence, to discuss the application 
process, the proposed operation of the cafe etc. to provide advice and information to the 
applicant.  
 
Once the pavement cafe licence has been issued, a further visit will be made to the 
premises to review the practical day-to-day operation of the cafe. An additional visit may 
also be undertaken to ensure the premises is meeting licence conditions. 
  

2. Legal Framework and Controls 
 
Permissions to use the highway for pavement cafes are granted by the issue of licences 
by Hyndburn Borough Council (the Council) under Section 115E of the Highways Act 
1980.  
 
Tables and chairs placed on the highway without permission are an illegal obstruction 
and the Council will take enforcement action in such cases. A fine of up to £1,000 can 
be levied by a Magistrates’ Court for committing an offence of obstructing the highway. 
  
Granting a licence to operate a pavement cafe does not imply an exclusive right to the 
area. The operator of the cafe should be aware that the Council reserves the right to 
gain access to the cafe area for cleaning, repairing and maintaining the highway or 
street furniture. Other statutory organisations may also require access for maintenance 

Page 54



 

5 
 

and repair of their equipment. The Council therefore reserves the right to suspend the 
licence temporarily if, for any reason, it becomes necessary.  
 
If it appears to the Council that a person to whom they have granted a permission under 
Section 115E above, has committed any breach of the terms of that permission, they 
may serve a notice requiring that such steps are taken to remedy the breach as are 
specified in the notice within such time as is so specified. 
  
If a person who is served a notice fails to comply with the notice the Council has the 
power to take whatever steps are necessary, themselves. Where the Council has 
incurred expenses in the exercise of the power, then those expenses, together with 
interest at a reasonable rate, may be recovered by the Council from the Licence holder.  
 
Under the terms of the Highways Act 1980, the Council cannot grant permission unless it 
obtains the express consent of interested frontages that may be materially affected by 
the proposal. (Section 115A(7) of the 1980 Act states that “frontages” means: “the 
owners and occupiers of any premises adjoining the part of the highway on, in or over 
which facilities for recreation or refreshment or both, have been, are being or would be 
provided.)  
 
For express consent to be required, the frontage would have to be affected by the 
placing of the structure etc. between his own frontage and the highway, rather than a 
structure adjacent to his own frontage.  
 
The Pavement Cafe must operate in accordance with the conditions of the licence. Any 
breach of the conditions may lead to action by the Licensing Section to revoke or refuse 
a licence in the future.  
 
The Council will not permit any wheeled refuse containers, beer kegs, bottle crates on or 
adjacent to the pavement cafe area.  
 
The barriers, table, chairs, and layout shall be as agreed by the Council and conform to 
the plan at all times.  
 
The premises should not place A boards or advertising signs or any other unsightly or 
unapproved items adjacent to the area.  
 
The Licence holder shall make no claims or charge against the Council in the event of 
the street furniture being lost, stolen or damaged in any way from whatever cause 
except where the same is attributable to negligence on the part of the Council or any of 
its officers.  
 
If for whatever period or reason a public liability insurance policy is not in force, the 
Council shall be deemed to have withdrawn this Licence for the period during which the 
said policy is not in force and the licence holder may be held liable for obstruction of the 
highway and prosecution under Section 137 of the Act.  
 
The licence holder shall not cause or undertake any alterations to the highway surface.  
 
The licence holder shall not assign, sub-let or part with his interest or possession of a 
licence.  

Page 55



 

6 
 

The Council may suspend or terminate a licence if any of the conditions of the licence 
are breached.  
 
The licence does not take precedence over Police powers to preserve public order.  

 
3. Private Land 
  
This policy relates only to pavement cafes on a public highway. Cafes on private land 
are not covered by this policy. However, although a pavement cafe on private land may 
not need a licence, it may require planning permission if the structures and fittings are 
not of a temporary nature.  
 
Land that might  be private may in fact have become part of the highway if the public 
have enjoyed access over it for at least twenty years or if the Council has formally 
adopted the land. Before proceeding, it would be wise to check with Council Planning 
Services to establish if planning permission is necessary.  
 

4. Right of Access  
 
Authorised Officers of the Council and Police Officers shall have access to a pavement 
cafe at all reasonable times.  
 

5. Advertising  
 
Advertising of alcoholic or smoking products or their manufacturers will not be permitted 
on the barriers or furniture within the Pavement Cafe area. Advertising may only relate to 
the premises or business and will require the approval of Hyndburn Council.  
 

6. Designing the Pavement Cafe 
  
The size and layout of the proposed Pavement Cafe will be dependent upon the 

characteristics of the site outside of the premises particularly the space available taking 

into account the needs of other users and it is not appropriate for this Policy to set a 

standard size for the Pavement Café.  

Plans will need to be submitted with an application and shall be drawn to scale and must 
include:  

 An up-to-date location plan (1:1250 scale) showing the outline of the premises 
and the proposed location of the street cafe;  

 Site layout plan (1:100 or 1:50 scale) showing the proposed boundary, kerb and 
building lines, enclosure barriers, points of access, table and seating layout, 
location of parasols, heaters etc.  

 
The layout of furniture and means of enclosure will only be approved if adequate 
provision has been made for customers with disabilities.  
The Pavement Cafe should: 
  

 occupy an area directly in front of the Applicant’s premises;  

 be visible from these premises; and  

Page 56



 

7 
 

 Not extend beyond the width of its frontage (unless in exceptional circumstances 
and granted by Licensing Authority).  

 
Emergency routes from adjacent buildings and the Applicant’s premises should not be 
obstructed by the Pavement Cafe. If the emergency services object to the proposal on 
safety grounds, it is very likely that the Council will refuse it.  
 

7. Minimum Unobstructed Space Criteria  
 
On a normal street, there must remain at least 1.8 metres of unobstructed space 
between the carriageway and the front of the pavement cafe to allow pedestrians to 
pass by safely. 
  
On streets with high pedestrian usage, there must remain at least 2.75 metres of 
unobstructed space.  
 
Each case will be judged on its merits and the unobstructed space will be set between 
2.0 and 2.75 metres according to the frequency of pedestrian usage and other relevant 
parameters. This requirement may however be waived by the Council in certain 
locations but ultimately, the decision will be made on safety grounds.  
 

8. Lighting  
 
The Applicant for a pavement cafe licence should, if intending to open beyond dusk, 
carefully consider the level of lighting in the proposed pavement cafe area. Whilst street 
lighting may be perfectly adequate for a public highway, it may need supplementing to 
allow the pavement café to operate safely. Any additional lighting equipment and supply 
must be specified in the application to enable its impact upon the highway to be 
considered.  
 

9. Tables and Chairs  
 
Tables and chairs shall be of a neutral colour scheme e.g. chrome, brushed aluminium, 
black, brown, beige, grey or white, with natural or neutral stained timber or wicker 
detailing; all must be fitted with rubber feet to reduce noise when moving and damage to 
paved surfaces.  
 
The Council reserves the right to reject applications where inappropriate furniture is 
proposed. So it is advisable to discuss furniture proposals with the Planning Section 
before any furniture is purchased. Full details of proposed furniture will be required upon 
submission of the application, including metric dimensions and material and a photo or 
drawing. When choosing furniture regard needs to be had of the highway surface on 
which it will stand uneven or sloping surfaces may require more sturdy styles of furniture 
and tables and chairs with narrow or thin legs may cause damage to certain paving, 
hours of proposed furniture, accompanied with photographs or drawings.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 57



 

8 
 

10. Parasols/ Umbrellas 
  
If parasols are to be used, then their metric dimensions, materials and colour must be 
specified as part of the application and their proposed locations shown on the site layout 
plan. 
 
Parasols, when opened, should be safely secured and contained entirely within the 
boundaries of the street cafe to ensure they do not cause an obstruction or present a 
danger to any user of the street cafe or any other users of the highway.  
 
The design and colour of parasols will not be restricted to a particular type but they 
should be made of high quality materials and fabric and be of a uniform design and 
colour. Garden style umbrellas are not acceptable. The base of the parasol must not 
cause a trip hazard in the street cafe area. No canopy or umbrella shall be lower than two 
metres in height. 
 
The only advertising permitted on parasols is the name of the cafe/ business. Such 
advertising must not be too dominant and should not detract from the appearance of the 
building and its setting, especially in conservation areas. Parasols advertising alcohol or 
tobacco will not be allowed.  
 
Canopies, awnings, blinds etc. which are to be attached to the building may require 
advertisement consent or planning permission. Advice should be sought from Planning 
Services. See the contacts section at the end of this guide.  
 

11. Space Heaters 
  
If space heaters are to be used, then their metric dimensions, materials and colour must 
be specified as part of the application and their proposed locations shown on the site 
layout.  
 
In considering an application, the Council will have regard to the inherent safety of the 
equipment, its location, storage of Liquid Petroleum Gas cylinders, maintenance and 
training arrangements.  
 
Applicants will be required to submit a formal risk assessment as required by the 
Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999. This should be carried out 
by a competent person (someone who has knowledge of the law, British Standards, and 
Health and Safety Executive Codes of Practice and Guidance).  
The Council will consider the adequacy of the risk assessment which must: 
  

 Identify the hazards e.g. fire, explosion, burns, impact from falling equipment / 
cylinders  

 Decide who may be harmed and how  

 Evaluate the risks and decide whether proposed precautions will be adequate or 
whether more could be done.  

 Record findings  

 Review assessment and revise if necessary.  
 

 
 

Page 58



 

9 
 

12. Barriers  
 
Barriers or other means of enclosure are required in order to ease/ guide pedestrian 
movement, guide the visually impaired, protect users of the facility and mark the 
boundary of the licensed area. 
  
The agreed street cafe boundaries shown on the plan that will be attached to the 
licence, if successful, must be adhered to at all times. The boundaries are required to be 
enclosed by either barriers or planters. These must be portable.  
 
It is essential that the means of enclosure is fit for purpose and suitable for the terrain in 
which that the pavement cafe operates. Should the Council deem barriers unsafe, we 
may ask that the tables and chairs be removed until suitable barriers are provided.  
 
The means of enclosure must:  
 

 Be stable and sturdy for all weather conditions the pavement café will operate in, 
including windy conditions: additional weights may be necessary to ensure 
barriers remain stable and secure;  
 

 Not contain protruding parts;  
 

 

 Have a tapping rail along the bottom of the barrier that visually impaired 
pedestrians can use to navigate around the street café using a stick;  
 

 Only display the name of the café/ business. They must not be used to advertise 
products or services. No alcohol advertising or tobacco is permitted. Proposed 
details of means of enclosure must be provided with the application.  
 

 

 Hoops or post and chain type barriers and low-level objects will not be 
acceptable.  

 
Barriers must not be permanently fixed to the ground where this is public highway 
 

 

13. Managing the Pavement cafe & Insurance 
  
The licensee will be required to indemnify the Council against all actions, demands, 
costs, charges or expenses arising from using the highway under the permission 
granted. The Council will, therefore, require the licensee to take out third party public 
liability insurance in the sum of at least £5,000,000. 

 

Page 59



 

10 
 

14. Hours of Operation  
 
Hours of operation will be determined on the application merits; although the following 
maximum hours will apply;  
 
The Licensing hours for street furniture will only be granted between the hours of 
9:30hrs to 21:00hrs. 
  
All furniture should be removed between the hours of 21:00hrs to 9:30hrs unless the 
premises are licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 (for sale of alcohol). In this case, 
barriers can remain in place until either when the premises close, or no later than 
04:00hrs to create a “smoking area”. No furniture other than space heaters, parasols 
should be present in the “smoking area” and neither alcoholic drinks nor glassware 
should be present in this “smoking area” after 21:00hrs. The smoking area will be 
required to be covered by CCTV and by SIA door staff and comply with smoking 
regulations. 
  
Licences are granted for a maximum of one year and are renewable annually. Licences 
for new sites will be subject to a three month probationary period.  
 
The Licence shall be displayed in the window of the premises to which it relates. 
 
A copy of plan must be kept on the premises at all times and be available for inspection. 
When the area of a street cafe has been agreed, a definitive plan of the area showing 
the boundaries and the dimensions will be attached to, and form part of, the Licence.  

 
15. Granting of a licence 
 
A Pavement Cafe Licence (‘the Licence’) is granted by Hyndburn Borough Council (‘the 
Council’) as the licensing authority for the Hyndburn Borough. 
 
Applications should be submitted by the prospective Licensee.  
 
A pavement café licence permits the approved Licensee to operate a pavement cafe 
serving food and beverages within a defined area (‘the Licensed Area’) and to a defined 
list of general conditions regarding use as set out at Appendix 1 of this document. 
 

Notice of any application for a new licence shall be displayed in the window of the 
premises to which it relates for a period of no less than 28 days. 
 
These notices set out details of the proposals and invite representations to be made by 
people who may be affected. If no objections are raised, the Licence will be granted 
within 5 working days, if an objection is raised, the delegated Service Manager will be 
required to determine the application within 20 working days. 
  
A copy of the required application form is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

11 
 

 Appendix 1 
 
Conditions Attached to a Pavement Licence 
  

Please note that these conditions are not an exhaustive list, and each 
application will be considered on its own merits and individual, specific 
conditions may be attached where deemed appropriate.  
 

General  

1.0 The Licence will have effect for 12 months, unless surrendered or revoked 
earlier. 
 

2.0 The issue of a Licence does not give, or imply any permission to supply 
intoxicating liquor in the street. 

 
3.0 The Licence shall be displayed in the window of the premises to which it 

relates. 
 
4.0 The use of the Licensed Area shall cease before 21.00 hours each day and 

shall not commence prior to 09.30 hours. 
 

5.0 The Licensed Area shall be vacated immediately if requested by the Council, 
Lancashire County Council as Highway Authority, Lancashire Constabulary or 
other emergency service, statutory undertaker etc. without any liability for 
compensation, refund of application fee, or damage arising. 

 

6.0 The Council reserve the right to request the clearing of the Licensed Area if 
required for special one-off events for public safety 

 

7.0 The Licence shall be rendered invalid, should the Licensee cease to own the 
premises or cease employment. 

 

8.0 The Licensee shall indemnify the Council and shall produce to the Council’s 
Licensing Manager for inspection a policy of insurance indemnifying himself 
and the Council against any injury or damage to any person or property and 
against any claim liability expense or damage arising by reason or in 
consequence of the permission granted. The policy shall provide cover of not 
less than £5,000,000 in respect of any one accident or series of accidents 
arising from one incident unlimited during the period of the insurance. 

 

9.0 Where the Council has received representation from the Lancashire 
Constabulary or an authorised officer of the Council, and believes that any 
breaches of conditions are serious enough in nature to warrant it, and could 
lead to public disorder, or affect public safety, revocation or suspension of the 
permission may take immediate effect. 
 

Page 61



 

12 
 

10.0 Upon expiry or revocation of the permission the Licensee shall remove any 
structures from the highway and reinstate the highway to its former state and 
condition and in default thereof, the Council will be empowered to carry out 
such work of reinstatement and recover the expense in so doing from the 
Licensee. 

 
Operational 

11.0 For streets with footways and carriageways, the maximum width of any 
licensed area shall not exceed one third of the usable width of the footpath. A 
minimum unobstructed footpath width of 1.8 metres must be provided for safe 
and convenient pedestrian movement. This distance being, measured from 
the edge of the licensed area to any significant amount of street furniture 
(such as lamp posts, bollards, parking meters etc.). Where there is a heavy 
pedestrian flow additional footpath space may be required. 
 

12.0 For pedestrianised streets a minimum width of 1.8 meters or two thirds of the 
total width of the public highway, whichever is the greater, must remain free 
and unobstructed to facilitate pedestrian movement. This figure may be 
increased where there is a heavy pedestrian flow. The unobstructed route 
shall fall equally either side of the centre line of the highway to ensure the 
space available for tables and chairs is shared equally between premises on 
each side of the street. 

 

13.0 A clear direct pathway of at least 1.2 metres wide shall be maintained to allow 
entry and exit from building premises. 

 
14.0 Only the Licensed Area shall be used for trading. 
 

15.0 Where tables and chairs are proposed directly outside a shop front, a well 
designed and constructed physical barrier or roped area of approximately 0.8 
metres in height is required to designate the area and to guide persons with 
sight disability around the use. Such barriers must not be permanently fixed to 
the ground and must be of a style, design and type to be agreed by the 
Council (Head of Regeneration and Policy).  

 
16.0 Only tables, chairs and umbrellas associated with tables shall be placed 

within the Licensed Area. No other furniture other than receptacles shall be 
placed within this area. 

 

17.0 Tables and chairs shall be durable and suitable for outside use. No damaged 
furniture should be used. 

 

18.0 The design of all chairs, tables, umbrellas, etc. shall be subject to the 
approval of the Council’s Head of Regeneration and Policy and such street 
furniture together with associated outdoor and pavement areas including an 
area of 1 metre around the Licensed Area must be regularly cleansed and 
floor debris and other' waste immediately removed to the satisfaction of the 
Council’s Head of Environmental Services. 

 

Page 62



 

13 
 

19.0 Tables, chairs and umbrellas shall not be positioned so as to obstruct sight 
lines for drivers of vehicles at junctions. 

 

20.0 No canopy or umbrella shall be lower than two metres in height and shall be 
adequately secured. 

 

21.0 All street cafe furniture, including barriers shall be removed at the end of 
trading each day, or at the end of the approved trading hours as defined by 
the Licence, whichever is the earliest. 

 

22.0 Suitable storage for street cafe furniture shall be identified by the applicant at 
the time of application for a licence. 

 

23.0 There must be adequate provision made for the collection and containment of 
litter and, where directed, the Licensee must provide suitable litter bins. 

 

24.0 The Licensee will ensure that the designated area is maintained in a clean 
and tidy condition. The Licensee shall also take appropriate precautions to 
prevent the immediate highway from becoming littered as a result of trading 
activities. 

 

25.0 The Licensee shall at all times when the pavement cafe is in operation make 
available for customers toilets and hand washing facilities, to wheelchair 
accessible standards where it is practicable and reasonable to do so. 

  

26.0 The Licensee will be responsible for the conduct of customers. They must not 
be a nuisance or annoy users of the highway or tenants of adjoining premises. 

 

27.0 No speakers or playing of music shall be permitted. 
 

28.0 No electrical cables shall be run along the ground in such a way that they 
create a trip hazard or are susceptible to mechanical damage. 

 
Alcohol licenses only 

29.0 Where intoxicating liquor is permitted to be served or consumed in the 
licensed area polycarbonate glasses must be used at all times. 

 

30.0 Where intoxicating liquor is permitted to be consumed in the Licensed Area 
this may only be served and consumed when accompanying a substantial 
meal.  This does not include bar snacks such as crisps, nuts etc.  All patrons 
consuming intoxicating liquor must be seated at a table within the licensed 
area, there will be no vertical drinking whatsoever. 

 

 

Page 63



 

14 
 

Guidance 

Planning permission must be obtained for the change of use of the highway for a 
pavement café and for any structural alterations to the building or its appearance. 
This includes the fitting of electrical signs and canopies 

 
 
 
 

Page 64



   Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
Application for a Licence to use the  
Highway for a Pavement Cafe. 
Highways Act 1980 Section 115C-E 
 
 
 

 
Please read the notes and answer all the following questions 

Question 1       Question 2 

Your Name and Address      Name and address of any person acting for you 

 
 
 
Postcode 
Tel. No. 
 

Question 3 
Describe the proposed location for the street café and address if different from the address in Q1 above. 
 
 
 

Question 4 
Please state the main proposed materials (for example: furniture, umbrellas, boundary markers, colour, 
type, styles) and show them on your detailed layout plan. 
 
 
 

Question 5 
Do you intend to alter any of the building and/or building frontage to accommodate the 
proposal? If YES, please show details of the alterations on your plan. YES/NO 
 
 

Question 6 
Are there any lighting columns, litter bins, road signs, public seating, trees, etc. on the site 
within the boundary of the area proposed for the street cafe? 
If YES, please show them on your plan. YES/NO 
 
 

Question 7 
Is proper sanitary accommodation available within the building to be used to service the  
Street cafe? YES/NO 
 
 

FOR OFFICE USE 

Application No… 

Date… 

Fee Paid… 

Receipt No… 

Page 65



   Page 2 of 2 

Question 8 
Is it intended to seek a licence to serve alcohol within the street cafe area? 
If YES, please answer Q9 below. YES/NO 
 

Question 9 
What range of drinks (alcoholic and non-alcoholic) is it intended will be served within the street café 
area? 
Give details below. 
 
 
The applicant should be aware that the granting of a licence does not permit the sale of alcohol within 
the outdoor café area. Separate licensing arrangements apply for the sale of alcohol and the applicant 
should check the conditions on the Premises Licence or consult the Licensing Authority. 

Question 10 
Please read and sign the following statement. 
 
I wish to apply for a licence to use the highway fronting the above named property for the purpose of a 
street café as described in this application and the accompanying plans and enclose the required fee. 
 
Signed…………………………………… Date……………………… 

 
Notes 
 
Applications should be made to the Licensing Manager, Licensing Section, Hyndburn Borough Council, 
Scaitcliffe House, Accrington, BB5 0PF 
 
1. Four complete copies of this form. 
2. Four location plans to Ordnance Survey quality to show the proposed area for the street café at 

1:1250 scale. 
3. Four detailed plans (to show the proposed street cafe) at a scale of  1:50 or 1:100 
4. Full manufacturers literature/details of the furniture/equipment to be used. 
5. An example of the menu of foods to be served. 
6. Details of the management arrangements for the street cafe. 
7. The standard fee. 
8. Proof of indemnification against all claims, injuries or accidents, with cover up to £5 million. 
 
You will need two types of plans: 
Location plan – to show where your proposal is situated in relationship to the surrounding area. You 
must clearly edge the site boundary in red. The plan should be of 1:1250, to Ordnance Survey quality.  
 
Detailed plan (with elevations) – to show the proposed street cafe and its relationship to existing 
buildings and features. The plan should be a metric scale of 1:50 or 1:100 and the main dimensions 
should be clearly stated. It should include all the information required by the questions above. 
 
Additional Notes: 
Planning consent – If you propose to alter the elevation of the property to enable the street café 
Planning Consent may be required. 
Listed Building Consent – If your building is included in the list of Buildings of Special Architectural or 
Historic Interest, or your proposal could affect the setting of such a building, you may need Listed 
Building Consent in addition to planning permission and to submit an application form LB1. 
Conservation Area Consent – If you propose the alteration of any building or part of a structure in a 
conservation area, you may need Conservation Area Consent in addition to planning permission and 
make an application for Conservation Area Consent. 

Page 66



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

1 of 2 

 

 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 
 Customer First Analysis 
 

 
What is it for? 
 
Our corporate values include putting the customer first, providing opportunities for bright futures and 
narrowing inequality across the Borough. 
 
From 1 April 2011, a new legal duty applies to all public authorities.  It covers these protected 
characteristics: 
 

 age; 

 disability; 

 gender reassignment; 

 pregnancy and maternity; 

 race; 

 religion or belief; 

 gender; 

 sexual orientation; and, for some aspects, 

 marriage and civil partnerships. 
 
The duty means that – as previously - we should analyse the effect of existing and new policies and 
practices on equality.  It does not specify how we should do this.  However, legal cases on the 
meaning of the previous general equality duties make it clear that we must carry out the analysis 
before making the relevant policy decision, and include consideration as to whether we can reduce 
any detrimental impact.   
 
The framework overleaf – our Customer First Analysis - is suggested when making a written record of 
the analysis.  This replaces Equality Impact Assessments. 
 
The Analysis should be proportionate to the policy decision being taken.  In some cases the written 
record will be a quick set of bullet points or notes under each heading, to deal with any questions 
which are relevant (or briefly explain why if they aren’t).  Others will need to be much more detailed.  A 
meaningful Analysis will help the Council make the best decision or formulate a policy which best 
meets our customers’ needs. 
 
Please return completed Customer First Analyses to Human Resources.  I can guide you through the 
process if this would be helpful. 
 
If you have any suggestions for improving this process, please let me know. 
 
 
 
Kirsten Burnett 
Head of HR 

Page 67



 UNCLASSIFIED  
 

2 of 2 

Customer First Analysis 
 

1. Purpose 
 

 What are you trying to achieve with the policy / service / function? 
 
Public confidence and transparency.  Facilities that can be enjoyed by all.  A Policy to ensure 
that people with disabilities e.g. visual impairments and wheelchair users will not be 
disadvantaged as the standard guidance will be that a licence will only be issued if an 
unimpeded pedestrian route can be maintained at all times. The route shall ensure that all 
pedestrians and particularly those with a disability can maintain their normal path where 

feasible. Barriers or other means of enclosure will be required in order to ease/ guide 
pedestrian movement, guide the visually impaired, protect users of the facility and mark the 
boundary of the licensed area. 

 

 Who defines and manages it? 
 
 Licensing Officers/ Licensing Manager and the Executive Director of Legal and Democratic 
 Services. 
 

 Who do you intend to benefit from it and how? 
 

Residents of Hyndburn  
   

 What could prevent people from getting the most out of the policy / service / function? 
  
 Failure to have regard to the policy when making decisions. 
 

 How will you get your customers involved in the analysis and how will you tell people about it? 
 

Publication of the updated policy on our website 
 
2. Evidence 
 
 Improved customer confidences and awareness 
 
3. Impact 
 
The policy will allow for a vibrant cafe culture to be developed in the area whilst ensuring that public 
safety and other local amenities can be protected. 
 

 
Name:   Wendy Redfern                              Signed: _________________________ 
 
Service Area:  Licensing                          Dated: 30th January 2020 

 
If applicable, please attach copy of – or website link to - the cabinet report for reference. 

 
 

Don’t forget to return your written record to HR. 
 

Page 68


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Cabinet
	Minutes

	4. Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups
	Minutes
	Minutes - Regeneration & Housing Panel 21.08.19
	Minutes

	Minutes - Regeneration & Housing Panel 14.10.19
	Minutes

	Minutes - Waste & Recycling Group 19.12.19
	Minutes


	6. Global Resettlement Scheme - Request for Procurement Rules Exemption
	7. Pavement Cafe Licensing Policy
	Pavement Cafe Policy
	Pavement Cafe Application Form
	Pavement Cafe - Customer First Analysis


